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SUPERTEL IS A SELF-ADVISED REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT
TRUST SPECIALIZING I“N LIMITED-SERVICE LODGING.
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Fellow Shareholders:

In ZOOS,ISupertel Hospitality has continued its philosophy of controlled growth to expand its hotel portfolio,
increase occupancy rates and reduce overall costs. These fundamentals, coupled with a positive economic
environment led to strong results in 2005 with a 5 percent increase in revenues and 20 percent increase

in dividend payments from the previous year.

|

There wete may highlights in 2005. Supertel acquired one hotel in Nebraska, five hotels in Indiana and one

in North Carolina which added 668 rooms to our portfolio. Supertel’s properties now consist of franchise
agreeménts for Super 8, Comfort Inn, Comfort Suites, Hampton Inn, Holiday Inn Express, Days Inn,
Ramada Limited, Guest House Inn, Sleep Inn and a Supertel boutique suites property in Key Largo, Florida.

This div}ersity enables Supertel to participate in the best practices of each of these respected hospitality partners.

Supertel has been able to reduce costs and leverage efficiencies while providing clean, friendly and affordable
accommodations to business and leisure travelers. Royal Host has done a great job managing the cost structure
of our hotels during 2005 and they are continuing to expand sales and marketing initiatives that will assist

the proiyerry managers in their efforts to maximize occupancy and the Average Daily Rate (ADR).
|

Superte(l reported revenues of $60.7 million and a net earnings of $2.8 million or 23 cents per diluted share,
for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to $2.0 million, or 16 cents per diluted share, for the same
ended December 31, 2004. Dividend payments were increased to a total of 24 cents a share in 2005,

up froxln 20 cents a share in 2004.

period

Revenues for 2005 compared to 2004, increased $2.9 million or 5 percent. The additional revenues generated
by thelseven hotels acquired in 2005 totaled $1.6 million. The increase in revenues was also due, in part, to an
increase in ADR of $1.41 or 2.7 percent and a 0.5 percent increase in occupancy, which resulted in a $1.04

or 3.2 (percent increase of Revenue Per Available Room (RevPAR) for the year ended December 31, 2005,
compared to the same 2004 period.

Supergrel believes that Funds From Operations (FFO') as that term is defined by the National Association
of Real Estate Investment Trusts is also a good measure of the operating efficiency of its hotel properties.
FFO, which is net earnings plus depreciation plus or minus losses or gains from the sale of properties,

was increased to 80 cents per share for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to 64 cents per share
for thL year ago period.

In 2005, the shareholders approved the name change to Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and the NASDAQ symbol
was qhanged to “SPPR” Besides our seven new acquisitions, Supertel also began construction on a 41-room
Supcftel Inn and Conference Center in Creston, lowa. The Conference Center, expected to be completed in

|
June (2006, can host events up to 200 people.

f
'FFO ‘per share is 2 non-GAAP financial measure within the meaning of the rules of the Securities
& Ex;change Commission and accordingly has been reconciled to the comparable GAAP measure.
For ﬁ}‘uther discussion of FFQO, see Item 6, Selected Financial Data, in the accompanying Form 10-K.

|
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We believe Supertel is well positioned for 2006. A public offering and sale of 1,521,258 shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock (Nasdaq: SPPRP) at $10 per share took place in December 2005. The proceeds
of the offering were applied to our $22 million re\;olving credit facility which will be available to provide
funds for acquisitions and general corporate purposes.

Looking ahead, Supertel feels that it is uniquely positioned to pursue a controlled acquisition strategy.

The overall hospitality industry is experiencing a period of growth, especially in the limited service sector.
We will continue to leverage efficiencies for cost control, while striving to increase occupancy rates and ADR.
Most importantly Supertel will not waver from its commitment of providing clean, friendly and affordable
accommodations, which is what ultimately brings guests back to our properties.

Our acquisition strategy and criteria for acquisition remains the same. We are acquiring hotels within existing
geographic clusters to achieve operating and marketing efficiencies. Market attractiveness is based on high
room demand or low supply and the opportunity to improve post acquisition operating results.

We remain committed to carefully managing your investment in Supertel Hospitality. Thank you for your
continued support.

vy

Paul J. Schulte |
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer -




SUPERTEL OWNS 76 PROPERTIES WITH APPROXIMATELY 5400

ROOMS IN

17 STATES IN THE MIDWESTERN AND EASTERN U.S.
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This diversity enables Supertel to participate in the best practices
of each of these respected brands.




2005 HIGHLIGHTS
* Acquisition of seven hotels
*» New $22 million revolving credit facility, effective on January 13, 2005

* Payment of dividends during each quarter for a total of 24 cents per share
in 2003, up from 20 cents per share in 2004

* Name change to Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and trading symbol change of our
common stock on the Nasdaq National Market to “SPPR”

* Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (Nasdag: SPPRP) public offering
and sale of 1,521,258 shares at $10 per share on December 30, 2005

* Earnings of 23 cents per diluted share for 2005, compared to earnings of 16 cents
and 8 cents per diluted share for 2004 and 2003
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PART1

Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a self-administered real estate investment trust (“REIT”), and through our subsidiaries, we own 76 limited
service hotels in 17 states. Our hotels operate under several national franchise brands.

Our significant events for 2005 include:

» the payment of dividends during each quarter for a total of $.24 per share in 2005, up from $.20 per share in
2004,

*  our name change from Humphrey Hospitality Trust, Inc. to Supertel Hospitality, Inc.; and trading symbol
change of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market from “HUMP” to “SPPR”.

* the acquisition of seven hotels;
* anew $22 million revolving credit facility, effective on January 13, 2005;

*  Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (Nasdaq: SPPRP) public offering and sale of 1,521,258 shares at $10
per share on December 30, 2005;

* earnings of $.23 per diluted share for 2005, compared to earnings of $.16 and $.08 per diluted share for 2004
and 2003.

Available Information

Our executive offices are located at 309 N. 5™ St, Norfolk, Nebraska 68701, our telephone number is (402) 371-2520,
and we maintain an Internet website located at www.supertelinc.com. Qur annual reports on Form 10-K and quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports are available free of charge on our website as
soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed with the SEC. We also make available the charters of our board committees
and our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics on our website. Copies of these documents are available in print to any
shareholder who requests them. Requests should be sent to Supertel Hospitality, Inc., 309 N. 5" St, P.O. Box 1448, Norfolk,
Nebraska 68701, Attn: Corporate Secretary.

(a) General Development of Business

We are a real estate investment trust for federal income tax purposes and we were incorporated in Virginia on
August 23, 1994. Our common stock began to trade on The Nasdaq National Market on October 30, 1996. Our preferred
stock began to trade on The Nasdaq National Market on December 30, 2005.

Through our wholly owned subsidiaries, Supertel Hospitality REIT Trust and E&P REIT Trust, we own a controlling
interest in Supertel Limited Partnership and E&P Financing Limited Partnership. As of December 31, 2005, we owned an
approximately 96% general partnership interest in Supertel Limited Partnership and a 100% interest in E&P Financing
Limited Partnership. Supertel Limited Partnership owns a 100% interest in Solomons GP, LLC which owns a 99% general
partnership interest in Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership. We own the remaining 1% limited partnership interest in
Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership and we own a 100% interest in Supertel Hospitality Management, Inc. Supertel
Limited Partnership also owns a 100% interest in SPPR-South Bend, LL.C and 99% interest in SPPR-Hotels, LLC. The
remaining 1% interest in SPPR-Hotels, LLC is owned by SPPR Holdings, Inc, our wholly owned subsidiary.

Under the REIT Modernization Act (“RMA”), which became effective January 1, 2000, REITs are permitted to lease
their hotels to wholly owned taxable REIT subsidiaries. We formed TRS Leasing, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries
TRS Subsidiary LLC and SPPR TRS Subsidiary, LLC (collectively the “TRS Lessee™) in accordance with the RMA.
Pursuant to the RMA, the TRS Lessee is required to enter into management agreements with an “eligible independent
contractor” who will manage the hotels leased by the TRS Lessee. Accordingly the hotels are leased to our taxable TRS
Lessee and are managed by Royal Host Management, Inc. Royal Host Management is a subsidiary of Royal Host Inc., a
Canada based publicly owned real estate investment trust.

(b) Financial Information About Industry Segments

We are engaged primarily in the business of owning equity interests in hotel properties. Therefore, presentation of
information about industry segments is not applicable. See the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included
in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for certain financial information required in this Item 1.




(c) Narrative Description of Business

General‘ At December 31, 2005, we owned, through our subsidiaries, 76 hotels in 17 states. The hotels are operated by
Royal Host Management. Our primary objective is to increase shareholder value through increasing the operating returns of
the hotels, and by acquiring equity interests in hotels that meet our investment criteria.

Internal Growth Strategy We anticipate using our net earnings and available cash flow to pay dividends to our
stockholders a“md make ongoing capital improvements, including furniture, fixtures and equipment, to our hotels. Excess
funds after those uses, if any, will be used for internal growth or reduction of debt.

|

Acquisition Strategy Any acquisition, investment or purchase of property requires approval of the Investment
Committee of our board of directors. Qur general investment criteria are described below:

|
* nationally franchised hotels in locations with relatively high demand for rooms, relatively low supply of competing

hotels g‘md significant barriers to entry into the hotel business, such as a scarcity of suitable hotel sites or zoning
restrictions;

* hotels which could benefit from new management, a new marketing strategy and association with a national franchisor;
* hotels which could benefit significantly from renovations; and

* hotels in attractive locations that could benefit by changing franchises to a grade that is more appropriate for the

1 )
location and clientele.
|

We acc/]uired seven hotels in 2005 through our subsidiaries. The following table reflects additional information
regarding each of these hotels:

Hotel | Location Date Acquired Rooms
Sleep h}m Omaha, NE Sep - 05 90
Comfogt Inn Fayetteville, NC Nov - 05 120
Comfort Suites Fort Wayne, IN Nov - 05 128
cOmforrft Suites Marion, IN Nov - 05 62
Comfop Suites Lafayette, IN Nov - 05 62
Comfort Inn & Suites Warsaw, IN Nov - 05 71
Comfort Suites South Bend, IN Nov - 05 135

668

Devel‘opment Strategy Subject to market conditions and the availability of financing, we may selectively grow through
the developl“rnent of new limited-service hotel properties. We are interested in sites that offer the potential to attract a diverse
mix of market segments.

Our site selection criteria include some or all of the following characteristics:

* urban or resort locations with relatively high demand for rooms, a relatively low supply of competing hotels and
significant barriers to entry in the hotel business;

|
+ areas|that have strong industrial bases with the potential for future growth;

* communities with state or federal installations, colleges or universities; and

* sites that currently have an aging hotel presence.

Thesﬁ: criteria describe the basic characteristics that we look for prior to committing to the development of a new hotel.
Sites that are selected may have some or all of the market characteristics described above, as well as characteristics that are
not specifically described herein. Sites selected by us will not necessairly possess all of these characteristics.

|

Sale of Hotels We may undertake the sale of one or more of the hotels from time to time in response to changes in
market con{ditions, our current or projected return on our investment in the hotels or other factors which the board of directors
deems releyant. We undertook a specific disposition program beginning in 2001 that included the sale of 23 hotels through
December 31, 2004. The proceeds from the sale of these hotels were used primarily to repay existing debt. We did not sell
any hotels in 2005 and none of our hotels were classified as being held for sale as of December 31, 2005; however, we may

] . "
sell adduanal hotels in the future as market conditions and other factors so warrant.

|
|




Operating Practices We are advised by Royal Host Management that it utilizes a centralized accounting and data
processing system, which facilitates financial statement and budget preparation, payroll management, internal auditing and
other support functions for the on-site hotel management team.

Royal Host Management advises us that each hotel it manages employs a general manager who is responsible for the
overall operations of the hotel. The general managers report to regional directors. Royal Host Management also utilizes
senior managers who assist the regional directors in the mentoring of newer managers and/or assisting properties needing
additional resources. As a management company, we are advised by Royal Host Management that it actively seeks feedback
from the general managers through a manager advisory board comprised

of managers nominated by the regional directors from each territory. Daily operations are managed using a centralized
approach led by regional directors. Royal Host Management advises us that its strategy is to encourage decision-making by
those people closest to the hotel operation level at the lowest administrative cost.

The principal provisions of our management agreement with Royal Host Management are as follows:

* Royal Host Management is paid a base fee equal to 4.75% of gross hotel income with respect to 70 of our hotels and
4% of gross hotel income with respect to 6 of our hotels;

 if annual net operating income exceeds 0% of our total investment in the hotels, then Royal Host receives an incentive
fee of 10% of the excess of operating income up to the first $1 million, and 20% of excess net operating income above
$1 million;

¢ the agreement runs through December 31, 2009 and is automatically extended for five years thereafter if specific net
operating income levels are achieved, subject to Royal Host Management’s option not to extend the agreement;

* either of us may terminate the agreement if net operating income is not at least 8.5% of our total investment in the
hotels or if we undergo a change in control (if we terminate the agreement for the change in control, then we pay Royal
Host Management a termination fee equal to 50% of its basic management fee for the prior 12 months);

* we may terminate the agreement if any of the hotels fails three successive franchisor inspections if the deficiencies are
within the reasonable control of Royal Host Management; and

* we may also terminate the agreement if tax laws change to allow a hotel REIT to self manage its properties (in which

event we would pay Royal Host Management a termination fee equal to 50% of its basic management fee for the prior
12 months.

The hotels currently operate under the following franchise brands:

Franchise Brand Number of Hotels
(a) Super 8 ‘ 44
(b) Comfort Inn/Comfort Suites 20
(c) Hampton Inn 4
(d)Holiday Inn Express 3
(b)Sleep Inn 1
(a) Days Inn ‘ 1
(a) Ramada Limited 1
(e) Guest House Inn 1
(f) Suites at Key Largo 1

Franchise Information ‘

{a) Super 8®, Ramada Limited®, and Days Inn® are registered trademarks of Cendant, Inc.

(b) Comfort Inn®, Comfort Suites® and Sleep Inn® are registered trademarks of Choice Hotels International, Inc.
(c) Hampton Inn® is a registered trademark of Hilton Hotels Corporation.

(d)Holiday Inn Express® is a registered trademark of Six Continents Hotels, Inc.

(e) Guesthouse® is a registered trademark of Guesthouse International Franchise Systems, Inc.

(f) Suites at Key Largo is an independent boutique suites property with a 30 bay marina.

Seasonality of Hotel Business The hotel industry is seasonal in nature. Generally, revenues for hotels operating in the
geographic areas in which we operate are greater in the second and third quarters of the calendar year than in the first and
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fourth quartejrs, with the exception of our hotels located in Florida, which experience peak demand in the first and fourth
quarters of the year. Historically, overall hotel operations reflect this seasonal pattern.

Competition The hotel industry is highly competitive. Each of our hotels is located in a developed area that includes
other hotel p:roperties. The number of competitive hotel properties in a particular area could have a material adverse effect on
revenues, occupancy and the average daily room rate of the hotels or at hotel properties acquired or developed in the future.
A number of our hotels have experienced increased competition in the form of newly constructed competing hotels in the
local market‘s, and we expect the entry of new competition to continue in several additional markets over the next several
years.

|

We may compete for investment opportunities with entities that have substantially greater financial resources than us.
These entitiés generally may be able to accept more risk than we can prudently manage. Competition in general may reduce
the number c{)f suitable investment opportunities for us and increase the bargaining power of property owners seeking to sell.
Further, we Pelieve that competition from entities organized for purposes substantially similar to our objectives could
increase significantly.

Emplqyees At December 31, 2005, we had 13 employees. Royal Host Management, the manager of our hotels, has a
workforce of approximately 1,245 employees dedicated to the operation of the hotels.




Ttem 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors describe various risks that may affect our business, financial condition and operations.

Our failure to qualify as a REIT under the federal tax laws would result in adverse tax consequences.

We have operated and intend to continue to operate in a manner so as to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax
purposes. However, the REIT qualification requirements are extremely complicated and interpretations of the federal income
tax laws governing qualification as a REIT are limited. Accordingly, we cannot be certain that we have been or will continue
to be successful in operating as a REIT. At any time, new laws, interpretations or court decisions may change the federal tax
laws or the federal income tax consequences of qualification as a REIT.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we would be required to pay federal income tax on our taxable
income and our taxable income would be computed without a dividends paid deduction. We might need to borrow money or
sell assets in order to pay the tax. Our payment of income tax likely would substantially decrease the amounts available to be
paid out to our shareholders. In addition, we no longer would be required to distribute substantially all of our taxable income
to our shareholders. Unless our failure to qualify as a REIT is excused under the federal income tax laws, we could not re-
elect REIT status until the fifth calendar year following the year in which we fail to qualify.

An economic recession and industry downturn could adversely affect our results of operations.

If room supply outpaces demand, our operating margins may deteriorate and we may be unable to execute our business
plan. In addition, if this trend continues, we may be unable to continue to meet our debt service obligations or to obtain
necessary additional financing.

We have restrictive debt covenants that could adversely affect our ability to run our business.

We file quarterly loan compliance certificates with certain of our lenders. As of September 30, 2004, we requested and
received a loan-to-value and a debt service ratio waiver with respect to a term loan with First National Bank of Omaha N A.
On February 17, 2005, the bank agreed to a covenant modification effective through June 30, 2006, providing for a lower
loan-to-value ratio and debt service coverage ratio. We were in compliance with all other loan covenants during 2005.

Weakness in the economy, and the lodging industry at large, may result in our non-compliance with our loan
covenants. Such non-compliance with our covenants may result in our lenders restricting the use of our operating funds for
capital improvements to our existing hotels, including improvements required by our franchise agreements. We cannot assure
you that our loan covenants will permit us to maintain our historic business strategy.

Our restrictive debt covenants may jeopardize our tax status as a REIT.

To maintain our REIT tax status, we generally must distribute at least 90% of our taxable income annually. In addition,
we are subject to a 4% non-deductible excise tax if the actual amount distributed to shareholders in a calendar year is less
than a minimum amount specified under the federal income tax laws. We have previously announced a general dividend
policy of paying out approximately 100% of annual REIT taxable income. In the event we do not comply with our debt
service obligations, our lenders may limit our ability to make distributions to our shareholders, which could adversely affect
our REIT tax status.

Our failure to have distributed old Supertel Hospitality, Inc.’s earnings and profits may compromise our tax status.

At the end of any taxable year, a REIT may not have‘any accumulated earnings and profits (described generally for
federal income tax purposes as cumulative undistributed net income) from a non-REIT corporation. In October 1999, our
company and the old Supertel Hospitality, Inc. merged. We were the surviving entity in the merger and in May 2005 we
changed our name to Supertel Hospitality, Inc. Prior to the effective time of the merger between our company and old
Supertel Hospitality, Inc., old Supertel paid a dividend to its stockholders of record in the amount of its accumulated earnings
and profits for federal income tax purposes. Accordingly, we should not have succeeded to any of the then current and
accumulated earnings and profits of Supertel. However, the determination of accumulated earnings and profits for federal
income tax purposes is extremely complex and Supertel’s computations of its accumulated earnings and profits are not
binding upon the Internal Revenue Service. Should the IRS. successfully assert that the old Supertel’s accumulated earnings
and profits were greater than the amount distributed by Supertel, we may fail to qualify as a REIT.




Our sale ofdssets acquired in a 1999 merger within ten years of the merger will result in tax.

|

In connection with our election to be taxed as a REIT, we have elected to be subject to the “built-in gain” rules. Under
these rules, taxes may be payable at the time and to the extent that the net unrealized gains on assets acquired, which included
hotels, in the‘ 1999 merger with the old Supertel Hospitality, Inc. are recognized in taxable dispositions of such assets in the
subsequent ten-year period. This ten-year period expires October 2009. We recognized buiit-in gains taxes of $286,000 due

to dispositions of five of those hotels in 2004.

|

Our debt seryice obligations could require us to liguidate our properties and may reduce cash available for distribution to
our shareholders.

As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately $92.0 million of existing indebtedness with maturity dates ranging
from November 2006 to 2024. Approximately $5.4 million of principal is due in 2006 and $12.4 million is due in 2007. We

cannot assure you that we will be able to re-finance or repay such debt when due or that the terms of any new debt financings

will be as favorable to us as the terms of our existing debt financing.

Adverse economic conditions could result in higher interest rates and other unfavorable terms on our current and future
borrowings. iHigher interest rates could increase debt service requirements on floating rate debt and could reduce the amounts
available for‘ distribution to our shareholders. In the past, we have obtained, and may obtain in the future, one or more forms
of interest rate protection in the form of swap agreements, interest rate cap contracts or similar agreements to “hedge” against
the possible Jnf:gative effects of interest rate fluctuations. However, we cannot assure you that any hedging will relieve the

adverse effe‘cts of interest rate fluctuations.

In order to meet our debt service obligations, we may have to sell additional hotel investments, potentially at a loss or
at times thatr prohibit us from achieving attractive returns. Failure to pay our indebtedness when due or failure to cure
covenant defaults could result in higher interest rates during the period of such loan defaults, and could ultimately result in
the loss of our hotels through lender foreclosure.

Our ability to make distributions to our shareholders is subject to fluctuations in our financial performance and operating

results as well as capital improvement requirements.

In thejevent of downturns in our operating results and financial performance, or unanticipated capital improvements to
our hotels, including capital improvements that may be required by our franchisors, we may need to reduce the amount of
distributions to our shareholders. The amount and timing of distributions are in the sole discretion of our board of directors.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to generate sufficient cash in order to fund future distributions or that any future

distributions are likely to be at the same rate as our historical distributions.
I

Amon‘g the factors that could adversely affect our results of operations and our distributions to shareholders are:

decreased revenue per available room and reduced net operating profits or operating losses; increased debt service
requirement{s, including those resulting from higher interest rates on our variable rate indebtedness; and capital expenditures
at our hotels, including capital expenditures required by the franchisors of our hotels. Hotel revenue can decrease for a
number of r%asons, including increased competition from new hotel rooms and decreased demand for hotel rooms. These

|
factors can reduce both occupancy and room rates at our hotels.

Our retums“ depend on management of our hotels by third parties.

In order to qualify as a REIT, we cannot operate any hotel or participate in the decisions affecting the daily operations
of any hotel. Under the REIT Modernization Act of 1999, REITs are permitted to lease their hotels to wholly-owned lessees
such as TR§ Lessee. However, TRS Lessee may not operate the leased hotels and, therefore, must enter into management
agreements|with third-party eligible independent contractors to manage the hotels. Thus, an independent operator under a

managemernt agreement with TRS Lessee controls the daily operations of each of our hotels.
|

Under the terms of such management agreement, our ability to participate in operating decisions regarding the hotels is
limited. We} depend on Royal Host Management to adequately operate our hotels as provided in the management agreement.
We do not have the authority to require any hotel to be operated in a particular manner or to govern any particular aspect of
the daily operations of any hotel (for instance, setting room rates). Thus, even if we believe our hotels are being operated
inefficiently or in a manner that does not result in satisfactory occupancy rates, revenue per available room and average daily
rates, we may not be able to force Royal Host Management to change its method of operation of our hotels. We can only seek
redress if aimanagement company violates the terms of the applicable management agreement with TRS lessee, and then only
to the extent of the remedies provided for under the terms of the management agreement. Additionally, in the event that we
need to rep;lace our management company, we may experience decreased occupancy and other significant disruptions at our

hotels and in our operations generally.



Our ability 10 make distributions to our shareholders may be affected by factors in the hotel industry that are beyond our
control.

Operating Risks

Our hotels are subject to various operating risks found throughout the hotel industry. Many of these risks are beyond
our control. These include, among other things, the following:

»  our hotels compete with other hotel properties in their respective geographic markets, and many of our competitors have
substantially greater marketing and financial resources than we do;

* over-building in our markets, which adversely affects occupancy and revenues at our hotels;
* dependence on business and commercial travelers and tourism;
» terrorist incidents which may deter travel;

*  Increases in energy costs, airline fares and other expenses, which may affect travel patterns and reduce the number of
business and commercial travelers and tourists; and

» adverse effects of general, regional and local economic conditions.

These factors could adversely affect the amount of rent we receive from leasing our hotels and reduce the net operating
profits of TRS Lessee, which in turn could adversely affect our ability to make distributions to our shareholders. Decreases in
room revenues of our hotels will result in reduced operating profits for TRS Lessee and decreased lease revenues to our
company under our current percentage leases with TRS Lessee.

Competition for Acquisitions

We compete for investment opportunities with entities that have substantially greater financial resources than we do.
These entities generally may be able to accept more risk than we can manage wisely. This competition may generally limit
the number of suitable investment opportunities offered to us. This competition may also increase the bargaining power of
property owners seeking to sell to us, making it more difficult for us to acquire new properties on attractive terms.

Seasonality of Hotel Business

The hotel industry is seasonal in nature. Generally, occupancy rates and hotel revenues are greater in the
second and third quarters than in the first and fourth quarters, with the exception of our hotels located in Florida. This
seasonality can be expected to cause quarterly fluctuations in our lease revenues. Our quarterly earnings may be adversely

affected by factors outside our control, including bad weather conditions and poor economic factors. As a result, we may
have to enter into short-term borrowings in our first and fourth quarters in order to offset these fluctuations in revenues.

Investment Concentration in Particular Segments of Single Industry

Our entire business is hotel-related. Our investment strategy is to acquire interests in limited service hotel properties.
Therefore, a downturn in the hotel industry in general and the limited service segment in which we operate in particular will
have a material adverse effect on our lease revenues and amounts available for distribution to our shareholders.

Capital Expenditures

Our hotels have an ongoing need for renovations and other capital improvements, including replacements, from time to
time, of furniture, fixtures and equipment. The franchisors of our hotels also require periodic capital improvements as a
condition of keeping the franchise licenses. The costs of all of these capital improvements could adversely affect our financial
condition and reduce the amounts available for distribution to our shareholders. These renovations may give rise to the
following risks:

*  possible environmental problems;
*  construction cost overruns and delays;

*  apossible shortage of available cash to fund renovations and the related possibility that financing for these renovations
may not be available to us on affordable terms; and

* uncertainties as to market demand or a loss of market demand after renovations have begun.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, we spent approximately $4.9 million for capital improvements to our
hotels.




Investment r(isks in the real estate industry generally may adversely affect our ability to make distributions to our
shareholders.

General Risks of Investing in Real Estate

Our investments in hotels are subject to varying degrees of risk that generally arise from the ownership of real property.
The underlying value of our real estate investments, and our income and ability to make distributions to our shareholders
depends on r}naintaining or increasing room revenues and operating income of our hotels. Both income from our hotels and
our ability to make distributions to our shareholders may be adversely affected by changes beyond our control, TRS Lessee’s

control and the hotels’ managers’ control, including the following:
« adverse|changes in national and local economic and market conditions;
» changes in interest rates and in the availability, cost and terms of debt financing;

* changes in governmental laws and regulations, fiscal policies and zoning ordinances and the related costs of compliance
with laws and regulations, fiscal policies and ordinances;

+ the ongoing need for capital improvements, particularly in older structures;

*  changes in operating expenses;

»  civil unrest, acts of war and acts of God, including earthquakes, floods and other natural disasters, which may result in
uninsured and underinsured losses; and

« the relative illiquidity of real estate investments.

Uninsured and Underinsured Losses

We maintain comprehensive insurance on each of our hotels, including liability, fire and extended coverage of the type
and amount we believe are customarily obtained for or by hotel owners. However, various types of catastrophic losses, like
earthquakes floods and wars, may not be insurable or may not be economically insurable. In the event of a substantial loss,
our insurance coverage may not be able to cover the full current market value or replacement cost of our lost investment.
Inflation, changes in building codes and ordinances, environmental considerations and other factors might also keep us from
using insurance proceeds to replace or renovate a hotel after it has been damaged or destroyed. Under those circumstances,
the insurance proceeds we receive might be inadequate to restore our economic position on the damaged or destroyed

property. If ‘am uninsured loss occurs, we may lose both our invested capital and anticipated profits from the property. Our

insurance pr}emiums may increase significantly in the future, which may have a materially adverse impact on our cash flow.
Furthermore, we may not be able to purchase policies in the future with coverage limits and deductibles similar to those
purchased for the year 2006. Because it is impossible to determine what kind of policies will be available in the future and at
what prices, we are unable to determine whether we will be able to maintain insurance coverage levels similar to those
secured for 2006. Our real property insurance policies put into effect on December 31, 2004 include limited terrorism

\
coverage, except for acts of war.

Increases in‘ property taxes could adversely affect our cash flow.

Real e“md personal property taxes on our current and future hotel properties may increase as property tax rates change
and as the properties are assessed or reassessed by taxing authorities. An increase in property taxes could have an adverse

effect on our ability to make distributions to shareholders.

Increases in occupancy taxes and other local taxes could adversely affect our cash flow.

The c‘ities and counties in which our hotels operate periodically attempt to increase their revenue by imposing
additional local taxes, which may be assessed both on the room charges to our customers and on a per diem basis. Because of
our negotiated room rates for some customers and market circumstances generally, we may not be able to fully pass on these

charges to our customers, and so an increase in these taxes could have an adverse effect on our cash flow and our ability to

make distrit;utions to shareholders.
|

Operating our hotels under franchise agreements could adversely affect distributions to our shareholders.

Seventy Five of our hotels operate under franchise agreements and we are subject to the risks of concentrating our hotel
investments in several franchise brands. These risks include reductions in business following negative publicity related to one
of our particular brands. Risks associated with our brands could adversely affect our lease revenues and the amounts available
for distribution to our shareholders.



The maintenance of the franchise licenses for our hotels is subject to our franchisors’ operating standards and other
terms and conditions. Our franchisors periodically inspect our hotels to ensure that we and TRS Lessee follow their
standards. Failure to maintain these standards or other terms and conditions could result in a franchise license being canceled.
As a condition of our continued holding of a franchise license, a franchisor could also possibly require us to make capital
expenditures, even if we do not believe the capital improvements are necessary or desirable or will result in an acceptable
return on our investment. Nonetheless, we may risk losing a franchise license if we do not make franchisor-required capital
expenditures.

If a franchisor terminates the franchise license, we may try either to obtain a suitable replacement franchise or to
operate the hotel without a franchise license. The loss of a franchise license could materially and adversely affect the
operations or the underlying value of the hotel because of the loss of associated name recognition, marketing support and
centralized reservation systems provided by the franchisor. As of December 31, 2005, TRS Lessee holds all of the franchise
licenses for our hotels. Loss of a franchise license for one or more hotels could materially and adversely affect our revenues.
This loss of revenues could, therefore, also adversely affect our cash available for distribution to shareholders.

Our inability to obtain financing could limit our growth.

We are required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to our shareholders each year in order to
continue to qualify as a REIT. Our debt service obligations and distribution requirements limit our ability to fund capital
expenditures, acquisitions and hotel development through retained earnings. Our ability to grow through acquisitions or
development of hotels will be limited if we cannot obtain debt or equity financing.

Neither our articles of incorporation nor our bylaws limit the amount of debt we can incur. Our board can implement
and modify a debt limitation policy without shareholder approval. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain
additional equity financing or debt financing or that we will be able to obtain any financing on favorable terms.

Noncompliance with governmental regulations could adversely affect our operating resulis.
Environmental Matters

Our hotel properties are subject to various federal, state and local environmental laws. Under these laws, courts and
government agencies have the authority to require the owner of a contaminated property to clean up the property, even if the
owner did not know of or was not responsible for the contamination. These laws also apply to persons who owned a property
at the time it became contaminated. In addition to the costs of cleanup, contamination can affect the value of a property and,
therefore, an owner’s ability to borrow funds using the property as collateral. Under these environmental laws, courts and
government agencies also have the authority to require that a person who sent waste to a waste disposal facility, like a landfill
or an incinerator, pay for the clean-up of that facility if it becomes contaminated and threatens human health or the
environment. Furthermore, court decisions have established that third parties may recover damages for injury caused by
property contamination. For instance, a person exposed to asbestos while staying in a hotel may seek to recover damages if
he suffers injury from the asbestos. Lastly, some of these environmental laws restrict the use of a property or place conditions
on various activities at a property. One example is laws that require a business using chemicals to manage them carefully and
to notify local officials that the chemicals are being used.

Our company could be responsible for the costs discussed above if it found itself in one or more of these situations. The
costs to clean up a contaminated property, to defend against a claim, or to comply with environmental laws could be material
and could affect the funds available for distribution to our sharcholders. To determine whether any costs of this nature might
be required, we commissioned Phase [ environmental site assessments, or “ESAs” before we acquired our hotels, and in
2002, commissioned new ESAs for 32 of our hotels in conjunction with a refinancing of the debt obligations of those hotels.
These studies typically included a review of historical information and a site visit, but not soil or groundwater testing. We
obtained the ESAs to help us identify whether we might be responsible for cleanup costs or other costs in connection with our
hotels. The ESAs on our hotels did not reveal any environmental conditions that are likely to have a material adverse effect
on our business, assets, results of operations or liquidity. However, ESAs do not always identify all potential problems or
environmental liabilities. Consequently, we may have material environmental liabilities of which we are unaware.

Americans with Disabilities Act and Other Changes in Governmental Rules and Regulations

Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, or the “ADA,” all public accommodations must meet various
federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons. Compliance with the ADA’s requirements could require
removal of access barriers and non-compliance could result in the U.S. government imposing fines or in private litigants
obtaining damages. If we were required to make substantial modifications to our hotels, whether to comply with the ADA or
other changes in governmental rules and regulations, our ability to make distributions to our shareholders and meet our other
obligations could be adversely affected.
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Mold claims could adversely affect our financial condition.

Public} consciousness regarding mold has recently been elevated and if mold is detected in any of our hotels, we may be
subject to adverse publicity, which could adversely affect our operations and financial results from that hotel. Such claims
could require us to spend significant time and money in litigation or pay significant damages. In addition, we may be required
to close all or portions of the affected hotel during mold remediation operations, which under certain conditions may be
difficult to e‘radlcate We may be required to remove and replace moldy materials in the hotel, or perform extensive facility
repairs, and the presence of mold in any hotel also could adversely impact the fair market value of that hotel.

Provisions of our articles of incorporation and Virginia law may limit the ability of a third party to acquire control of our
company.

Ownership Limitation

Our articles of incorporation provide that no person may directly or indirectly own more than 9.9% of our common
stock or 9.9% of any series of our preferred stock. This may prevent an acquisition of control of our company by a third party
without our board’s approval, even if our shareholders believe the change of control is in their interest.

Authority to Issue Preferred Stock

Our afticles of incorporation authorize our board to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to establish the
preferences ‘and rights of any shares issued. The issuance of shares of preferred stock may have the effect of delaying or
preventing a change in control of our company, including transactions at a premium over the market price of our capital

stock, even if shareholders believe that a change of control is in their interest.

Virgir‘zia Anti-Takeover Statutes

As a Virginia corporation, we are subject to various anti-takeover laws found in the Virginia Stock Corporation Act.
These laws i)lace restrictions and require compliance with various procedures designed to protect the shareholders of Virginia
corporations: against unfair or coercive mergers and acquisitions. These restrictions and procedural requirements may
discourage takeover offers for, or changes in control of, our company, including transactions at a premium over the market

price of our|capital stock, even if shareholders believe that a change of control is in their interest.

Our ownership limitation may prevent you from engaging in certain transfers of our capital stock.

In ord‘er to maintain our REIT qualification, no more than 50% in value of our outstanding capital stock may be owned,
directly or ipdirectly, by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the federal income tax laws to include vartous kinds of
entities) during the last half of any taxable year. In addition, if any shareholder or group of related or affiliated shareholders
of our lessee owns, actually or constructively, 10% or more of our stock, we likely would lose our REIT status. Our articles
of incorporajtion contain the ownership limitation, which prohibits both direct and indirect ownership of more than 9.9% of
the outstand‘ing shares of our common stock or 9.9% of any series of our preferred stock by any person, subject to several
exceptions. Generally, any shares of our capital stock owned by affiliated owners will be added together for purposes of the

ownership limitation.

If anyone transfers shares in a way that would violate the ownership limitation or prevent us from continuing to qualify
as a REIT under the federal income tax laws, we will consider the transfer to be null and void from the outset, and the
intended tra}nsferee of those shares will be deemed never to have owned the shares. Those shares instead will be transferred to
a trust for the benefit of a charitable beneficiary and will be either redeemed by our company or sold to a person whose
ownership of the shares will not violate the ownership limitation. Anyone who acquires shares in violation of the ownership
limitation or the other restrictions on transfer in our articles of incorporation bears the risk that he will suffer a financial loss
when the shares are redeemed or sold if the market price of our stock falls between the date of purchase and the date of

redemption or sale.

We may not be able to complete development of new hotels on time or within budget.

We may develop hotel properties as suitable opportunities arise. New project development is subject to a number of
risks that co}uld cause increased costs or delays in our ability to generate revenue from any development hotel, reducing our
cash available for distribution to shareholders. These risks include:

*  construction delays or cost overruns that may increase project costs;

e competition for suitable development sites;
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+ receipt of zoning, land use, building, construction, occupancy and other required governmental permits and
authorizations; and

+ substantial development costs in connection with projects that are not completed.

We may not be able to complete the development of any projects we begin and, if completed, our development and
construction activities may not be completed in a timely manner or within budget.

We may also rehabilitate hotels that we believe are underperforming. These rehabilitation projects will be subject to the
same risks as development projects.

Hotels that we develop have no operating history and may not achieve levels of occupancy that result in levels of operating
income that provide us with an attractive return on our investment.

The new hotels that we may develop have no operating history. These hotels, both during the start-up period and after
they have stabilized, may not achieve anticipated levels of occupancy, average daily room rates, or gross operating margins,
and could result in operating losses and reduce the amount of distributions to our shareholders.

Property ownership through joint ventures and partnerships could limit our control of those investments.

Joint ventures or partnerships involve risks not otherwise present for investments we make on our own. It is possible
that our co-venturers or partners may have different interests or goals than we do at any time and that they may take actions
contrary to our requests, policies or objectives, including our policy with respect to maintaining our qualification as a REIT.
Other risks of joint venture investment include impasses on decisions, because no single co-venturer or partner has full
control over the joint venture or partnership. Joint ventures may include other restrictions on us, including requirements that
we provide the joint venture with the right of first offer or right of first refusal to acquire any new property we consider
acquiring directly.

Our business could be disrupted if we need to find a new manager upon termination of an existing management agreement.

If Royal Host Management fails to materially comply with the terms of their management agreement, we have the right
to terminate such management agreement. Upon termination, we would have to find another manager to manage the property.
We cannot operate the hotels directly due to federal income tax restrictions. We cannot assure you that we would be able to
find another manager or that, if another manager were found, we would be able to enter into a new management agreement
favorable to us. Our franchisors may require us to make substantial capital improvements to the hotels prior to their approval,
if required, of a new manager. There would be disruption during any change of hotel management that could adversely affect
our operating results and reduce our distributions to our shareholders.

If we decide 1o sell hotels, we may not be able to sell those hotels on favorable terms.

We have sold twenty-two hotels since 2002, ten in 2002, seven in 2003 and five in 2004. We did not sell any hotels in
2005. We may decide to sell additional hotels in the future. We may not be able to sell such hotels on favorable terms, and
such hotels may be sold at a loss. As with acquisitions, we face competition for buyers of our hotel properties. Other sellers
of hotels may have the financial resources to dispose of their hotels on unfavorable terms that we would be unable to accept.
If we cannot find buyers for any properties that are designated for sale, we will not be able to implement our divestiture
strategy. In the event that we cannot fully execute our divestiture strategy or realize the benefits therefrom, we will not be
able to fully execute our growth strategy.

We depend on key personnel.

We depend on the efforts and expertise of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to drive our day-to-
day operations and strategic business direction. The loss of any of their services could have an adverse effect on our
operations. Our ability to replace key individuals may be difficult because of the limited number of individuals with the
breadth of skills and experience needed to excel in the hotel industry. There can be no assurance that we would be able to
hire, train, retain or motivate such individuals.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties
The fc’;llowing table sets forth certain information with respect to the Hotels as of December 31, 2005:

Hotel Brand Rooms
Sl‘lper 8
Aksarben-Omaha, INE ...ttt ettt s s s art e e assites 73
ANAMOSA, LA .o ettt et ettt et e et eteetreaetbestbtenaraeesstaesssesnraentns 35
AN, WLttt sttt st v et ettt saae e et e e et e aensa e e e e s st ene 52
BatesSVILIe, AR ..ottt b ee e e et e s e s b er e s e s e se s bbaereae s 49
Burlington, LA ..o e et e 62
Charles CItY, LA ..ottt ettt eb e stbe st sbaesraesbee s s e 2abestbessae st sa s e ssaesesnneensaensenns 43
CINEON, TA o eoeeoeeeeereeeeeseeseeeeev e te s s ese sttt etarssassesssesssssssassssn s basasssssas s sssassasasnsssnssrssarasns 63
COlUIMDBUS, NE oottt e sttt e e s s re b e tetetessses s babetesesesssbansesasessoes 63
Cornhusker—Lincoln, NE.......ccccciiiiiiiiiir et ee et ee ettt e e e eaaenas 133
CTESEON, TA oottt ettt et r ettt e s e st bt e ee e e e e e e e s s tb e e e et resetrebteeesaevasaen 123
ELDOTado, KS ..ottt ettt ettt et e et et e e st r e e e e s ee st araae s e e seenes 49
Fayetteville, AR ...ccccoiiiiieiieiieirect ettt ae e e s rr ettt e e s e es e st bt sree e 83
Ft. Madison, TA ...ttt et et ret et e ate e e et et r bt e e s e e st rt e e e e rane 41
Hays, KS ottt ekt bbb 78
TOWaA CHLY, TA it ettt bttt sttt ne e sereneaes 86
Jefferson City, MO ..ottt e e e e ee e e e st naraneees 77
KEOKUK, LA .ottt e e stv e e a e sre s tnr e s ebbaessbeaeateestbesnsee st nesbaeeses 61
Kingdom City, MOh......coo oottt sttt sttt 62
KirKSVIIIE, MO oottt ettt ettt et e re ettt ereebe et reerea e 61
LeneXa, K S ittt e e et e et et a s re e s et bt s rar e earaeaen 101
Manhattan, KS ...ttt et e ettt e e e e e eatbna e eannaen 87
MeENOMONIE, W ..ottt ee e s sttt e e st eseabe s e s et eaeesasresesarereseraneas 81
MODEILY, MO .ttt ettt se et b st ettt aanta e st bt e nr e e arreaaree ettt aaatre s 60
MU PLeaSANt, TA oo ee et e e et s e s e s r e e e e e ae s rer e ee e s s tarnres 55
MUSCALNE, LA ..ottt ettt e st v se st s e rasenenssssssresantes et ssstansennnees 63
NEOSNO, MO ..ottt e e e e ses e s e s e s e s e s s sias bt renesesssesantsenssesessrnine 58
INOITOLK, INE ..ottt ettt e e ettt e et e e eae s et aeteseba e e st et sbasestbesnneesrbesbreean 66
OmMaha, NE ..ottt s ettt e e e e e s st b e e e e e e sttt e s n e e aanenans 116
O NEIIL NE .ottt s ee st e e eave e serbeetbnsesbeeeetbeanresasbsaeseessranaasnseses 72
Parsons, KS ...ttt ettt ta et b e e etb e st b s e rnsebsaeatre e 48
Pella, TA .ot e ettt e e s tate s e nonaarenaees 40
PIttSBUIZ, KIS oottt ettt ae e et st e et s a e eas 64
POrtage, W ..o ettt sttt e 61
Sedalia, MO ..ottt e e e st et et e e s e st e e st r e n et ae e e e n e anenaaas 87
SRAWANO, WL ..ottt ettt et e ettt e s et e s e s esesesaaesesesbenesestbesssssaaesanenesesnssaansaes 55
StOrmM LAKe, IA .. ... ettt e et ettt e s e st et a e senen e s eeeseas 59
TOMEAR, W Lottt et e s s et e e e e e et e s s se st e s e s esseesrresasessesnares 65
WALETTOWIL, SD ..ottt et e eer b s e st e e e tr e et s s s ba e s e etreesesabesessenesesrensasn 57
WAYNE, NE ..ottt e st s tb e st tb e e be e e stb e e b e e s rbeeaaeesrresenbe e 40
West Dodge— Omaha, NE .......cooioiiiii ettt st see s eae e 101
West “O7 — LIincoln, NE....c.ooiiiiiiinininiennesen e ssssnnnessesiesnsenesssssessnssnsresssssiens 82
WICHITA, KIS oottt et b re e ettt e e s et e e et etb b e e at et eeeees s etbeaaaee s 119
Wichita — (Park City), KS ..ottt sree st e s sr s e sab st aesabe s b s sssesastaensrean 59
WESE PLAINS, MO ..ottt ettt et e st ettt a e st s tbs e st s e ssme s ssestbesaneaeanneeas 49
CUIPEPEL, VA oottt ettt bt s be ek sbe e bt et e e s e seenesr b stnene 49
ChambershUIZ, PA .......ovoiiiieeiee ettt sttt sttt et s e st et e saete st s sstsbesesne ot 63
Dahlgren, VA e ettt sttt et st et e et e et e ere et e ae e e beenteas 59
DU, VA e et e et e e e eeetr e e s ettt e e et e s e st e s sraaaans 99
FarmViIlIe, VA oottt e ta et st e et teeen e s e saate e etae et st stbsstsaeeneeenteesareen 51

Comfort Inn /Comfort Suites
|
|
|
|




GettySbUIZ, PA L. e e e 80

MOTZANTOWI, WV .ottt ettt sttt s ebe e ne e e nese b et enn e st e e anenaen 80
MITOCGUE, Wit et aa e e e e e sa e e e b e e e e b e s ereereeabeesanasaesbneseneseaeransnas 51
NEW CaStIe, PA ittt e sttt e e s st be e e s e eatan b eb et e e sae s treateee s earteaeeeaassrara 79
PHINCEION, WV e e e e r ettt e e s ba e ettt e e e e e era e e e rtaeeeabe e e etntaesttnaeen 51
ROCKY MOUNE, VA Lottt sttt et n i 61
SheboyZanm, W . ..ot b e s s 59
Beacon Marina-Solomons, MDD ......o.voviie it e e e re s e e e e ba s 60
DOVEL, DE. ...ttt e e e et e e e e bt e s et et e irta e treeaenen 64
FayetteVILIe, INC ....ooviiii ettt st e et en e s e 120
WVATSAW, TN oottt e e st e et e et e et e e e s e et e et 71
Lafayette, IN ..o oottt sttt s e e b e et tarera s e e e e s 62
IMATION, TN L ittt e e et ettt et e e et b e sasr e te e e eaasesae s e b e e teeetbeaareeeanbeeasasennnes 62
SOUI BN, IN oottt ettt et et ert e et re e r e et aee e 135
Fort Wayne, IN ... et 128
Sleep Inn
 OMANA, NE .ottt ettt ettt e ea et et et ne e anene 90
Days Inn
Farmville, VA ..o et h vt s e e —tteere enahertae atn—arrtes s ittt et s e raatrraeeaerenare 59
Hampton Inn
BIrandorm, FL oot eet s s s e vt sessares s s ssseee s e e s smanesesessstsensaensessssssnsseessessnnanrenne &0
Cleveland, TN Lo r e s et et ee e e bt e e et a e be e eeassa e ebae et ntbe e e anra e aabene s 59
JaCKSON, TN ettt ae e e e r ettt e e e s b e e e e arene e 121
SHEIDY, N ettt et sttt e e st bt an bttt 77
Guest House Inn
EIENION, FL ..ottt ettt e sttt cbe s aesre e s tvsease b e et aesbaees e aareeennarsrssenenesnns 63
Holiday Inn Express ‘
DanVILIE, KY oottt ettt e et e s s st e s st r e s e re s s et b aeeres s bta e e e etrareeas 63
Gettysburg, PA ... PO PO U OO OROR PR POROOTSROPNNY 51
Harlan, KY ..o e ee v e etieteeesaeresiererErebeaeeaae s bata st ae s e s re e senatees 62
Ramada Limited
BHENTON, FL ..o e ettt ettt e e ebaee e e eab e s e stb e e enraaesabeee s 73
Suites at Key Largo ‘
Key Largo, FL ..ottt ettt et eb e st 40
TOLALS ©eveeeeee ettt ee et et e s e e et ettt e e se e e et ee st e et ens s aneeesse st b e s baaesessaenrabesesssabtnseesesnrtn 5,361

Additional property information is found in Item 8 Schedule III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to, nor are any of our properties subject to, any material legal proceedings. We are, from time to
time, engaged in routine litigation incidental to the business.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.

15




PART II

|
|
|
|
|
|

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity / Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities. }
(a) Market Information

The corr}lmon stock trades on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “SPPR.” The closing sales price for the
common stock on March 16, 2006 was $4.91 per share. The table below sets forth the dividends declared per share and high
and low sales prices per share reported on the Nasdaq National Market for the periods indicated.

Common Stock

High Low Dividend

2004
| TSt QUATLET oo oo seere e eeesssneees e $ 494 415 0.05
Second QUATLET.............coovveiioeieeeceee et $ 460 3.55 0.05
Third QUATTET ........c..coviiiiieivceeee et ere e ne s $ 495 371 0.05
Fourth QUarter.............oooovveveeeieercceicecteeeeeees e $ 4.18 3.60 0.05

2005
First QUArter...........ccoooooiiiovieiie et naas $ 399 3.66 0.06
Second QUANTET ..............ocoivviiiiiiee e $ 4.60 3.67 0.06
Third QUarter............ccovev it svae e $ 512 4.12 0.07
FOurth QUAarter.............cooveieei ittt $ 5.00 4.40 0.07

(b) Holders

As of March 16, 2006, the approximate number of holders of record of the common stock was 160 and the approximate
number of beneficial owners was 2,350.

|

() Dividend‘s

D1v1dends paid during the year ended December 31, 2005 ($.24) represented ordinary income ($.24) to shareholders.
The 2004 fourth quarter dividend ($.05) was paid in January 2005, and will be reported as a component of 2005 dividend
payments fo‘r income tax purposes. The 2005 fourth quarter dividend ($.07) was paid in

January 200:6, and will be reported as a component of 2006 dividend payments for income tax purposes. We will continue to
pay dividen(‘is to shareholders as business conditions allow, in accordance with our previously announced policy of

distributing ‘approximately 100% of our taxable net income. The actual amount of future dividends will be determined by the
board of directors based on the actual results of operations, economic conditions, capital expenditure requirements and other

] .
factors that the board of directors deems relevant.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Through December 31, 2001, operating revenues and expenses of the hotels (other than those of the eleven hotels
classified fojr sale from June 1, 2001) were reflected in the financial statements of Humphrey Hospitality Management, Inc.
(HHM). Pu{suant to the master lease, with an effective date of January 1, 2002, the hotels previously leased to HHM were
then leased to the TRS Lessee which, in turn, entered into the management agreement with HHM. Accordingly, our
consolidated financial staternents include all of the operating revenues and expenses of the hotels for 2005, 2004, 2003 and

2002.

Effec(tive July 31, 2004, the TRS Lessee terminated its hotel management agreement with HHM and effective

August 1, 2004, TRS Lessee entered into a new hotel management agreement with Royal Host Management.

|
|
J
J
|
|
J
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The following table sets forth our selected financial information. The selected operating data and balance sheet data
have been extracted from our consolidated financial statements for each of the periods presented and should be read in
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto inciuded elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(In thousands, except per share data) As of or for the Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Operating data (1)
Room rentals and other hotel services (2)....cc..ooovvvvvvnirenn. 60,537 $ 57.634 $ 57209 $ 58,739 $ 4,797
Base and percentage rents (3) ...oovoereciiieeneins e, — — — — 19,092
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations.............ccceeeeeeneenn. 2,778 1,299 281 (3,175) (439)
Discontinued OpPerations ........c.ccoviverercvenieerimrneieeereeneses e eneseeereenns — 678 728 178 1,148
‘Net earnings (JOSS) ....ocvereriiiiiiieererir et et sre s eaesereesaearee e 2,778 1,977 1,009 (2,997) 709
Preferred stock dividends .........cococeeviiiiiiii e 6) — — — —
Net earnings (loss) available to Common Shareholders .................... 2,772 1,977 1,009 (2,997) 709
FFO () ottt et rve et sta e s e raenne s 9,637 7,732 5,418 3,361 8,874
Net earnings (loss) per common share from continuing operations -
basic and AiUed .....eevviiiieicc e 0.23 0.11 0.02 (0.28) (0.04)
Net earnings (loss) per common share from discontinued
operations - basic and diluted ..o — 0.05 0.06 0.02 0.10
Net earnings (10ss) per common Share...........c..c..ooceeiirencinneieennnn, 0.23 0.16 0.08 (0.26) 0.06
FFO per share - basic and diluted (4) .......ccccooeniiieiiniiiieneen, 0.80 0.64 0.45 0.30 0.79
LOLAL ASSELS oo 156,956 118,923 124,949 114,260 167,949
Lotal 1ong-term debt......ocovveeiiiiiierrie e e 92,008 71,418 77,611 94,275 115,872
Net cash flow: ‘
Provided by operating activities........cccovvevvreririrccenninnnerneonn, 10,215 9,123 10,121 2,424 13,758
Provided (used) by investing activities ........cccoevvvrvcerererrirenas (32,355) (197) 8,885 17,835 (2,816)
Provided (used) by financing activities........ccccocverecinnrrracnnnns 22,986 (8,912) (20,222) (23,761) (6,149)
Dividends per share (5) «.ooccocovviiiiieiii e 0.26 0.20 0.17 — 0.23
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic and diluted 12,062 12,054 12,045 11,318 11,226
XECONCILIATION OF NET EARNINGS TO FFO
Vet earnings (loss) available to Common Shareholders.................... 2,772 $ 1977 % 1,009 $ (2997) $ 709
Jepreciation and AMOTTIZATION ....eevveeeveieerenaenieceee e e nae e 6,863 6,488 6,896 8,210 8,204
‘Gain) loss on disposition Of ASSELS ........ceccevrveieiieriiiir et 2 (733) (2,487) (1,852) 39
O (4) ettt et bt era et 9,637 § 7,732 % 5418 % 3,361 % 8,874
(1)  Revenues for all periods exclude revenues from hOteis sold or classified as held for sale after January 1, 2002, which
are classified in discontinued operations in the statements of operations.
(2) Hotel revenues for 2001 include room and other revenues from operations of eleven hotels classified for sale for the
period June 1, 2001 through December 31, 2001. Hotel revenues for 2003, 2004, 2003 and 2002 include room and
. other revenues from the operations of the hotels.
‘ (3) Represents annual base rent plus aggregate percentage rent pursuant to the percentage leases with Humphrey
Hospitality Management, Inc. (HHM), a former management company. On January 1, 2002, the hotels which had been
leased to HHM were leased to TRS Lessee.
(4) FFO is a non-GAAP financial measure. We consider FFO to be a market accepted measure of an equity REIT’s

operating performance, which is necessary, along with net earnings (loss), for an understanding of our operating
results. FFO, as defined under the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (NAREIT) standards, consists
of net income computed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”), excluding gains (or losses) from sales of real estate assets, plus depreciation and amortization of real estate
assets. We believe our method of calculating FFO complies with the NAREIT definition. FFO does not represent
amounts avatlable for management’s discretionary use because of needed capital replacement or expansion, debt
service obligations, or other commitments and uncertainties. FFO should not be considered as an alternative to net

ol
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income (loss) (computed in accordance with GAAP) as an indicator of our liquidity, nor is it indicative of funds
available to fund our cash needs, including our ability to pay dividends or make distributions. All REITs do not
calculate FFO in the same manner, therefore, our calculation may not be the same as the calculation of FFO for similar
REITSE. We use FFO as a performance measure to facilitate a periodic evaluation of our operating results relative to
those of our peers, who like us, are typically members of NAREIT. We consider FFO a useful additional measure of
performance for an equity REIT because it facilitates an understanding of the operating performance of its properties
without giving effect to real estate depreciation and amortization, which assumes that the value of real estate assets
diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, we

believe that FFO provides a meaningful indication of our performance.

FFO for 20035, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001 includes impairment losses on real estate of 30, $0, $2,069,000, $2,246,000
and $1 192,000, respectively. Prior to the third quarter of 2003, we followed a practice of excluding such losses from
FFO. However we revised this practice based on clarification of the SEC staff’s position on the FFO treatment of
impairlment losses and guidance from NAREIT issued during the third quarter of 2003.

(5) Represents dividends declared by the Company. Dividends paid during the year ended December 31, 2005 ($0.24)
represented ordinary income to shareholders. The 2004 fourth quarter dividend ($0.05) was paid in January 2005, and
will be reported as a component of 2005 dividend payments for income tax purposes. The 2005 fourth quarter dividend
(0. 07{) was paid in January 2006, and will be reported as a component of 2006 dividend payments for income tax

purposes.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain information both included and incorporated by reference in this management’s discussion and analysis and
other sectlons of this Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities At of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and as such may
involve kno‘{vn and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance or
achievemen:ts to be materially different from future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on assumptions that management has made in light

of experience in the business in which we operate, as well as management’s perceptions of historical trends, current

e \ . . .
conditions, expected future developments and other factors believed to be appropriate under the circumstances. These
statements dre not guarantees of performance or results. They involve risks, uncertainties (some of which are beyond our

control) andiJ assumptions. Management believes that these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions.

| . . . . . .
Forward-looking statements, which are based on certain assumptions and describe our future plans, strategies and
” “anticipate,” “estimate,”

expectations are generally identifiable by use of the words “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,
“believe,” “mtend” or “project” or the negative thereof or other variations thereon or

comparable‘ternnnology. Factors which could have a material adverse effect on our operations and future prospects include,
but are not limited to, changes in: economic conditions generally and the real estate market specifically, legislative/regulatory
changes (including changes to laws governing the taxation of real estate investment trusts), availability of capital, risks
associated with debt financing, interest rates, competition, supply and demand for hotel rooms in our current and proposed
market areajs, policies and guidelines applicable to real estate investment trusts and other risks and uncertainties described
herein, and rn our filings with the SEC from time to time. These risks and uncertainties should be considered in evaluating
any forward-looking statements contained or incorporated by reference herein. We caution readers not to place undue

reliance on ény forward-looking statements incladed in this report which speak only as of the date of this report.

Overview

We are a self-administered real estate investment trust, and through our subsidiaries, we own 76 limited service hotels
in17 states.( Our hotels operate under several national franchise brands.
|
Our significant events for 2005 include:
. t/he payment of dividends during each quarter, for a total of $.24 per share in 2003, up from $.20 per share in 2004;
»  our name change from Humphrey Hospitality Trust, Inc. to Supertel Hospitality, Inc.; and trading symbol change

or‘f our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market from “HUMP” to “SPPR”;

+ the acquisition of seven hotels;
|

*  anew $22 million revolving credit facility, effective on January 13, 2005;
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»  Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (Nasdaq: SPPRP) public offering and sale of 1,521,258 shares at $10 per
share on December 30, 2005;

« earnings of $.23 per diluted share for 2005, compared to earnings of $.16 and $.08 per diluted share for 2004 and
2003, respectively;

+  the dividend declared for the first quarter of 2006 is $.09, payable April 28, 2006 for shareholders of record March
31, 2006, this represents a $.02 cents increase from the prior quarter.

Through our wholly owned subsidiaries, Supertel Hospitality REIT Trust and E&P REIT Trust, we own a controlling
interest in Supertel Limited Partnership and E&P Financing Limited Partnership. As of December 31, 2005, we owned an
approximately 96% general partnership interest in Supertel Limited Partnership and a 100% interest in E&P Financing
Limited Partnership. Supertel Limited Partnership owns a 100% interest in Solomons GP, LLC which owns a 99% general
partnership interest in Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership. We own the remaining 1% limited partnership interest in
Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership. Supertel Limited Partnership also owns a 100% interest in SPPR-South Bend,
LLC and 99% interest in SPPR-Hotels, LLC. The remaining 1% interest in SPPR — Hotels, LLC is owned by SPPR Holdings,
Inc, our wholly-owned subsidiary.

The discussion that follows is based primarily on our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2005 and
2004, and for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, and should be read along with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes.

RevPAR, ADR and Occupancy

The following table presents our revenue per available room (“RevPAR”), average daily rate (“ADR”) and occupancy,
by state, for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The comparisons from continuing operations include 76, 69 and 69 hotels for
the respective years.

) Year ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003

State RevPAR  Occ. ADR  RevPAR  Occ. ADR  RevPAR  Occ. ADR
Arkansas $29.24 58.4% $50.05 $26.32 34.2% $48.56 $27.07 58.9% $45.94
Delaware 6144 73.5% 83.58 6050 79.0% 76.56 61.55 80.7% 76.26
Florida 5196 68.8% 75.53 51.65 682% 7568 46.14 62.6% 73.66
Indiana[1] 37.04 527% 70.25 — — — — — —
Iowa 2797 634% 44,10 26.83 63.3% 4241 2690 61.7% 43.60
Kansas 29.06 61.0% 47.66 27.86 59.1% 47.13 2931 62.5% 46.89
Kentucky 39.60 64.3% 61.56 3454 572% 60.36 3435 59.1% 58.07
Maryland 51.74 64.8% 79.89 4752 62.7% 7579 5546 75.2% 73.71
Missouri 2495 554% 45.07 2500 55.0% 4549 2539 53.8% 47.20
Nebraska 23,78 54.5% 43.63 2420 572% 4231 24.67 58.5% 4220
North Carolina 3541 58.6% 60.41 3150 552% 57.09 30.79 544% 56.61
Pennsylvania 46.62 653% 7142 4559 66.1% 6901 4556 67.9% 67.09
South Dakota 2800 61.6% 4545 27.83 63.4% 4388 30.18 70.3% 42.95
Tennessee 4564 73.7% 61.90 4441 755% 5885 4223 726% 58.17
Virginia 4281 73.9% 5791 37.18 650% 57.19 36.66 648% 56.57
West Virginia 5051 80.1% 63.07 48.12 789% 61.03 4597 762% 60.32
Wisconsin 32.54 59.0% 55.14 3464 624% 5552 3285 61.0% 53.86

$33.68 62.4% $54.00 $32.64 62.1% $52.59 $32.44 62.3% $52.11
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Our R§VPAR, ADR and Occupancy, by franchise affiliation, from continuing operations, for 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, were as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Flag RevPAR  Occ. ADR  RevyPAR  Occ. ADR  RevPAR  Occ. ADR
Super 8 $26.82 58.7% $45.72 $26.68 59.4% $44.95 $27.19 60.1% $45.23
Comfort Inn{Comfort Suites 4539 693% 6546 4355 68.1% 63.97 4277 679% 63.01
Hampton Inn 47.04 69.6% 67.62 4531 70.6% 64.15 42.68 67.8% 62.93
Holiday Inn Express 4471 649% 68.85 40.17 595% 6750 40.01 623% 64.18
Suites atKe)‘/Largo 7262 68.0% 106.85 8597 71.0% 121.11 84.59 76.1% 111.16
Ramada Lim:ited 4487 73.2% 6126 40.18 68.3% 58.80 32.62 58.5% 5572
Guest House Inn 3543 62.0% 57.16 31.52 58.1% 54.25 2577 493% 52.22
Days Inn 35.66 62.9% 56.67 3227 58.0% 55.66 3444 62.7% 54.90
Sleep Inn [1 4171 T77.6% 5373 — — — — — —

$33.68 62.4% $54.00 $32.64 62.1% $52.59 $32.44 62.3% $52.11

(1)  Acquired in 2005.

Results of Operations
Comparison|of the year ended December 31, 2005 to the year ended December 31, 2004

Operating results are summarized as follows for the years ended December 31 (table in thousands):

2005 2004 Continuing
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued Operations -
Operations Operations Total Operations Operations Total Variance
Revenues............... e $ 60695 $ — $ 60,695 $ 57809 §% 635 $ 58444 § 2,886
Hotel and property operations expenses 42,372 — 42,372 41,242 636 41,878 (1,130
Interest expense ‘ ................................ 5,959 — 5,959 5,559 24 5,583 (400
Depreciation and A}mortization expense 6,363 — 6,863 6,418 75 6,493 (445
General and administrative expenses..... 2,526 — 2,526 2,134 —_ 2,134 (392
Termination and Rélocation Costs......... — — — 1,169 — 1,169 1,169
Net gains (losses) Sn dispositions of
assets and provi§ion for impairment
108S evvirereiiiinns b, (2) — ) (12) 745 733
Minority interest ; ................................. 226 — 226 218 — 218 )
Income tax expense (benefit) ................. 3D — 3nH (242) 33) 275) 1
| S 2778 S 0§ 2778 $ 1299 § 678 $ 1,977 $ 1479

| :
Revenues and Operating Expenses
|

Revenues increased, from continuing operations, by approximately $2.9 million during 2005, of which $1.6 million
was due to a:cquisition of hotel properties during 2005. The increase in revenue was also due, in part, to an increase in
average daily rate (ADR) of $1.41 or 2.7% and a 0.3% increase in occupancy, which resulted in a $1.04 or 3.2% increase of
revenue per available room (RevPAR) for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the year ago period.

Hotel and property operations expenses, from continuing operations increased by approximately $1.1 million during

2005, due to‘ acquisition of hotel properties during 2005 with operations expense of $1.2 million.

|
|

Interest Eprnse and Depreciation Expense
Intere$t expense, from continuing operations increased by approximately $400,000, due partially to acquisitions and

rising rates. Depreciation expense increased $445,000, primarily due to acquisitions and asset additions outpacing the amount
of assets exceeding their useful life. General and administrative cost increased by approximately $392,000, due primarily to
increases in payroll/taxes/benefits and consulting fees during 2005.
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Termination and Relocation Costs

There were no Termination and Relocation Costs during 2005. The 2004 cost of $1.2 million was a result of
termination fees directly related to TRS Lessee terminating its hotel management agreement with Humphrey Hospitality
Management (HHM) for $500,000 and agreeing to reimburse HHM for certain employment-related severance costs of
approximately $189,000. Additional one-time expenses associated with the termination of the hotel management agreement
and a related decision to relocate the corporate offices from Columbia, MD to Norfolk, NE approximated $379,000, which is
primarily represented by executive separation agreements, legal and consulting services. In addition, capitalized expenditures
for replacement software and computer equipment totaled to approximately $225,000.

Income Tax

The Income tax expense (benefit) is related to the taxable earnings (loss) from the Company’s taxable subsidiary, the
TRS Lessee. Management believes the Federal income tax rate for the TRS Lessee will be approximately 40%. The tax
benefit is a result of TRS Lessee’s losses for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. The income tax expense (benefit)
will vary based on the taxable earnings of the TRS Lessee, a C corporation. The income tax benefit decreased by
approximately $211,000 during 2005 compared to the year ago period, due to a reduced loss by the TRS Lessee in 2005
compared to the year ago period. ‘
Dispositions

In 2005 no hotel sales were realized. In 2004, we recognized net gains on the disposition of assets of approximately
$733,000, due primarily to net gains on the sale of five hotels ($745,000, net of built-in gain taxes of $286,000). No
impairment charges were recorded for 2005 and 2004.

Comparison of the year ended December 31, 2004 to the year ended December 31, 2003

Operating results are summarized as follows for the years ended December 31 (table in thousands):

2004 2003

Continuing
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued Operations
Operations Operations Total Operations Operations Total Variance

Revenues .........ccoeeevieecieenne, $ 57,809 $ 635 $ 358444 $ 57404 $ 4499 § 61903 $ 405
Hotel and property

operations eXpenses .......... 41,242 636 41,878 41,640 3,788 45,428 398
Interest eXpense ........cevceveeve.. 5,559 24 5,583 6,244 542 6,786 685
Depreciation and :

Amortization expense........ 6,418 75 6,493 6,435 461 6,896 17
General and administrative

EXPENSES...eenirreeneerieareeenn, 2,134 — 2,134 2,052 — 2,052 (82)
Termination and Relocation

COSES oo, 1,169 — 1,169 — — — (1,169)
Net gains (losses) on

dispositions of assets and

provision for impairment

1088 i (12) 745 733 (543) 961 418 531
Minority interest.................... 218 — 218 270 — 270 52
Income tax expense (benefit). (242) (33) (275) (61) (59) (120) 181

$ 1,299 § 678 $ 1,977 $ 281 % 728 $§ 1,009 $ 1,018

Revenues and Operating Expenses

Revenues declined by approximately $3.5 million during 2004, due primarily to the sale of 12 hotel properties during
2004 and 2003 ($3.8 million), five of which were sold in 2004, offset by a slight increase in comparable RevPAR ($.20 or
$343,000).

Hotel and property operations expenses declined by approximately $3.6 million during 2004, due primarily to the sale
of 12 hotel properties during 2004 and 2003 ($3.2 million) and lower costs of ancillary services ($67,000), lower labor cost
($94,000), lower fixed cost ($387,000) and increased benefit cost $296,000.

Interest Expense and Depreciation Expense

Interest expense declined by approximately $1.2 million during 2004, due primarily to the early extinguishment of
long-term debt using the proceeds from the sale of 12 hotel properties since January 1, 2003. Depreciation expense has also
declined ($403,000), primarily as a result of the sale of certain of our hotel properties. General and administrative costs
increased by approximately $82,000 (payroll/taxes/benefits increased $79,000) during 2004.
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Termination c‘md Relocation Costs

Termination and Relocation Costs reflect termination fees directly related to TRS Lessee terminating its hotel
management Jagreement with HHM ($500,000) and agreeing to reimburse HHM for certain employment-related severance
costs of approximately $189,000. Additional one-time expenses associated with the termination of the hotel

|

management ‘agreement and a related decision to relocate the corporate offices from Columbia, MD to Norfolk, NE
approximated $379,000, which is primarily represented by executive separation agreements, legal and consulting services. In
addition, capitalized expenditures for replacement software and computer equipment totaled to approximately $225,000.

Income Tax \}

The IncJome tax expense (benefit) is related to the taxable earnings (loss) from the Company’s taxable subsidiary, the
TRS Lessee. Management believes the Federal income tax rate for the TRS Lessee will be approximately 40%. The tax
benefit is a result of TRS Lessee’s losses for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. The income tax expense (benefit)
will vary baséd on the taxable earnings of the TRS Lessee, a C corporation. The income tax benefit increased by
apprommately $155,000 during 2004 compared to the year ago period, due to an increased loss by the TRS Lessee in 2004

compared to the year ago period.
!

Dispositions |

In 2004, we recognized net gains on the disposition of assets of approximately $733,000, due primarily to net gains on
the sale of ﬁve hotels ($745,000, net of built-in gain taxes of $286,000). In 2003, we recognized net gains on the disposition
of assets of approx1mately $418.,000, due primarily to net gains on the sale of seven hotels (961,000, net of built-in gain
taxes of $178,000 and a provision for built-in gain taxes which was reduced ($300,000) based on a change in the allocation of

hotel sales pr‘oceeds from us to the TRS Lessee.

Impairment Fharges

In 200{4, no impairment charges were recorded. In 2003, we recorded impairment charges on three hotels ($1,152,000)
and two add;tional hotels which did not meet our criteria for classification as held for sale at December 31, 2003 ($917,000),
which were later sold during 2004.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our income and ability to meet our debt service obligations, and make distributions to our shareholders, depends upon
the operations of the hotels being conducted in a manner that maintains or increases revenue, or reduces expenses, to generate
sufficient h&tel operating income for TRS Lessee to pay the hotels’ operating expenses, including management fees and rents
to us. We depend on rent payments from TRS Lessee to pay our operating expenses and debt service and to make
distributions} to shareholders.

We e)épect to meet our short-term liquidity requirements generally through borrowings on our revolving credit facility
with Great Western Bank and net cash provided by operations. We believe that our available borrowing capacity and net cash
provided by/operanons will be adequate to fund both operating requirements and the payment of dividends in accordance
with REIT rFqulrements

We expect tp meet our long-term liquidity requirements, such as scheduled debt maturities, through long-term secured and
unsecured borrowings and the issuance of additional securities.

Financing
At December 31, 2005, we had long-term debt of $92.0 million consisting of notes and mortgages payable, with a
weighted average term to maturity of 6.5 years and a weighted average interest rate of 7.22%. Aggregate annual principal

payments fo“r the next five years and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2006 ..ottt a et tb e e b ae b e e e ent e et eestae s et beeraereneets $ 5,373

2007 ettt e et e et e s e naeser e e st ae e eteren et rnee e 12,366

2008 e — e e et s et et e aar—e e ettt s e rt e e vaa st e s tr et e antrneesias 2,923

2000 Lo et s e —r e ae s st r e e et a e e et re s e i re st rree st e eanees 15,609

‘ 2000 et et et ab e s r e e ettt v te s et e st e sianeen e 2,387
Tl}ereafter .................................................................................................................................. 53,350
322008

22




We have or currently intend to finance or refinance the debt payments coming due in 2006 in the amount of $2.8
million. The remainder of the maturities in 2006, approximately $2.6 million, consist of principal amortization on other
mortgage loans which we expect to fund through cash flow from operations.

We file quarterly loan compliance certificates with certain of our lenders. As of December 31, 2005, we were in
compliance with all loan covenants.

As of September 30, 2004 we requested and received a loan-to-value and a debt service ratio waiver with respect to a
term loan with First National Bank of Omaha N.A. Ten of our hotels secure the $12 million term loan. We had a loan to
value ratio of 63% and a debt service ratio of 1.46:1 as compared to the covenant requirements of the term loan of 60% and
1.5:1. The bank has agreed that through and including June 30, 2006, the loan-to-value ratio will be determined using a
capitalization rate of 11% for valuing the hotels (versus an original rate of 12%) and the debt service coverage ratio will be
1.35:1. As of December 31, 2005, we were in compliance with the covenants under this term loan, as so modified.

If we fail to pay our indebtedness when due, or fail to comply with covenants, we could incur higher interest rates
during the period of such loan defaults, and could ultimately lose the hotels through lender foreclosure.

Acquisition of Hotels

The Company acquired the 90-room Sleep Inn and Suites hotel located in Omaha, Nebraska in September 2005. The
purchase price of $3.6 million was paid by approximately $800,000 with an assumed mortgage note payable and 633,047 of
common operating units of Supertel Limited Partnership (a limited partnership 96% owned by the Company), of which
266,131 common operating units were immediately redeemed for $1.2 million in cash.

On November 7, 2005, SPPR-Hotels, LLC, a single-purpose bankruptcy remote entity 99% owned by Supertel Limited
Partnership and 1% owned by SPPR Holdings, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired five hotels (four
located in Indiana and one in North Carolina) in the amount of approximately $20.2 million, which was funded by
approximately $5.4 million of borrowings from Supertel Hospitality’s existing credit facilities with Great Western Bank and
a $14.8 million loan from Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp.

On November 30, 2005, SPPR-South Bend, LLC, a single-purpose bankruptcy remote entity 100% owned by Supertel
Limited Partnership, acquired one hotel located in Indiana, in the amount of $12,080,000. The acquisition was funded thru
the assumption of an approximate $6.1 million promissory note payable to GE Capital Franchise Finance Corporation, a $3.0
million promissory note payable to Independent Property Operators of America, LLC and approximately $3.0 million of
borrowings from Supertel Hospitality’s existing credit facilities with Great Western Bank.

Disposition of Hotels

During 2005 we did not sell any hotels. As of Decen}ber 31, 2005, none of our hotels were classified as held for sale.

Redemption of Preferred Operating Partnership Units

We own, through our subsidiary, Supertel Hospitality REIT Trust, an approximate 96% general partnership interest in
Supertel Limited Partnership, through which we own 20 of our hotels. We are the sole general partner of the limited
partnership, and the remaining approximate 4% is held by limited partners who hold, as of December 31, 2005, 372,195
common operating partnership units and 195,610 preferred operating partnership units. Each limited partner of Supertel
Limited Partnership may, subject to certain limitations, require that Supertel Limited Partnership redeem all or a portion of
his or her common or preferred units, at any time after a specified period following the date he or she acquired the units, by
delivering a redemption notice to Supertel Limited Partnership. When a limited partner tenders his or her common units to
the partnership for redemption, we can, in our sole discretion, choose to purchase the units for either (1) a number of our
shares of common stock equal to the number of units redeemed (subject to certain adjustments) or (2) cash in an amount
equal to the market value of the number of our shares of common stock the limited partner would have received if we chose
to purchase the units for common stock. We anticipate that we generally will elect to purchase the common units for common
stock. The preferred units are convertible by the holders into commeon units on a one-for-one basis or may be redeemed for
cash at $10 per unit until October 2009. The preferred units receive a preferred dividend distribution of $1.10 per preferred
unit annually, payable on a monthly basis and do not participate in the allocations of profits and losses of Supertel Limited
Partnership.
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Capital Com‘mitments
]

Belowlis a summary of certain obligations that will require capital:

Less Than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt. et $ 128559 $ 11,966 $ 26,334 $ 26,653 $ 63,606
Land IEaSeS ....uvidevieeiireiiien i ettt ettt ceete s ebe et e 2,742 59 118 118 2,447
Total contractual Obligations ........c.oceveerrcirivccreecnrecrnenins $ 131,301 § 12,025 $ 26452 $ 26,771 $ 66,053

We have various standing or renewable contracts with vendors. These contracts are all cancelable with immaterial or

no cancellati}on penalties. Contract terms are generally one year or less.

Other

To maintain our REIT tax status, we generally must distribute at least 90% of our taxable income annually. In addition,
we are subje‘ct to a 4% non-deductible excise tax if the actual amount distributed to shareholders in a calendar year is less
than a minimum amount specified under the federal income tax laws. We have a general dividend policy of paying out
approx1mately 100% of annual REIT taxable income. The actual amount of any future dividends will be determined by the
board of directors based on our actual results of operations, economic conditions, capital expenditure requirements and other

|
factors that the board of directors deems relevant.

Off Balance Sheet Financing Transactions

We have not entered into any off balance sheet financing transactions.

Critical Accounting Policies

Criticzzil accounting policies are those that are both important to the presentation of our financial condition and results of
operations and require management’s most difficult, complex or subjective judgments. We have identified the following
principal accounting policy that has a material effect on our consolidated financial statements:

Impairment pf assets

| L L .
If ever}its or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a hotel property to be held and used may be
impaired, a recoverability analysis is performed based on estimated undiscounted cash flows to be generated from the

property in the future. If the analysis indicates that the carrying value is not recoverable from future cash flows, the property
is written down to estimated fair value and an impairment loss is recognized. If a decision is made to sell a hotel property, we
evaluate the|recoverability of the carrying amount of the asset. If the evaluation indicates that the carrying value is not
recoverable from estimated net sales proceeds, the property is written down to estimated fair value less costs to sell and an
impairment ‘loss is recognized. Estimates of cash flows and fair values of the properties are based on current market
conditions and consider matters such as revenues and occupancies for the properties, recent sales data for comparable
properties ar;ld, where applicable, contracts or the results of negotiations with purchasers or prospective purchasers. The
estimates are subject to revision as market conditions and management’s assessment of them change. If we misjudge or
estimate incorrectly, we may record an impairment charge that is inappropriate or fail to record a charge when we should

| .
have done s?, and the amount of these charges may be inaccurate.

: |
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

\
Market Risk Information

The market risk associated with financial instruments and derivative financial or commodity instruments is the risk of
loss from adverse changes in market prices or rates. Our market risk arises primarily from interest rate risk relating to
variable rate borrowings. Our interest rate risk management objective is to limit the impact of interest rate changes on
earnings anq cash flows. In order to achieve this objective, we rely primarily on long-term, fixed rate non-recourse loans
from institutional lenders to finance our hotels. We are not currently using derivative financial or commodity instruments to

o] .
manage interest rate risk.

|

Management monitors our interest rate risk closely. The table below presents the annual maturities, weighted average
interest rate“s on outstanding debt at the end of each year and fair values required to evaluate the expected cash flows under
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debt and related agreements, and our sensitivity to interest rate changes at December 31, 2005. Information relating to debt
maturities is based on expected maturity dates and is summarized as follows (in thousands):

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total Fair Value
Fixed Rate Debt .............. $ 5180 $ 2515 $ 2698 $ 15367 $ 2,125 § 48366 $ 76251 $ 80,746
Average Interest Rate ....... 7.29% 7.32% 7.31% 7.26% 7.03% 6.71% 7.09% —
Variable Rate Debt.......... $ 193 § 9851 $ 225 % 242§ 262 % 4984 § 15757 $ 15,095
Average Interest Rate........ 7.38% 7.49% 7.61% 7.61% 7.61% 7.61% 7.52% —

As the table incorporates only those exposures that exist as of December 31, 2005, it does not consider exposures or
positions that could arise after that date. As a result, our ultimate realized gain or loss with respect to interest rate fluctuations
would depend on the exposures that arise after December 31, 2005.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Superte]l Hospitality, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December
31, 2005 and 2004 and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial
statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule III . These consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform'the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 1

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule III, when considered in
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein. :

KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
March 30, 2006
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Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(In thousands, except per share data)

As of
December 31, December 31,
2005 2004
ASSETS |
Investmer‘)ts PN NOTEL PIOPETLIES 11.voverviriricrie ettt cret ettt et $ 205,169 $ 163,891
Less accumulated depreCiation ........c.cvioriieriieriie ettt et e s s 55,399 49,346
149,770 114,545
Cash and|cash 6QUIVAIENES..........coceiiriiirierrin et a i 1,163 317
Accounts; PECEIVADIE ..ottt e ae st s e s b s e e s bae et 1,252 803
Prepaid expenses and Other @SSELS.........eiiririeriireniiieicie sttt er st ene st 2,999 1,699
Defenedfﬁnancing COSES, TIEL Lovvieriieetrrieveeeseeeeereeaieeestaeersessebeeessesstbe e bneesbbeatbebessbraesraessseansanes 1,772 1,559
( $ 156,956 $ 118,923
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
LIABILIT IE§
Account? payable, accrued expenses and other Habilities......c.cocooeriiiiiiiieere e $ 7937 $ 5,769
Long-term debl ........ccocoiviiiiiiiiiiii s 92,008 71,418
99,945 77,187
Minority interest in consolidated partnerships .....cc.coiveiiorineoi e 3,560 2,024
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferrecﬂ stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; 1,521,258 shares issued and
outsta}mding, liquidation preference 0f $15,213 ....cviieviiieeieeeriee e 15 —
Preferred Stock WarTants ........c.ocviiiiiiiii s 53 —_
Commo‘h stock, $.01 par value, 25,000,000 shares authorized; 12,064,283 and 12,059,849
outst?nding ......................................................................................................................... 121 121
Additiorflal PAIA-IN CAPILAL ..ottt e et 65,621 51,585
Distn'bu‘tions 10 eXCess Of retained CarNIIES . ..o coevreereerrereeerterresaesaeseeareesreveserasaessaasaeereaes (12,359) (11,994)
53,451 39,712

COMMITMIENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
$ 156,956 $ 118,923

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Supertel Hospitaiity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
REVENUES
Room rentals and other ROt SETVICES ... ..iviiii it ie et ea s ee s e e st e eeeae s $ 60,537 $ 57,634 $ 57,209
ONET et et e 158 175 195
' 60,695 57,809 57,404
EXPENSES
Hotel and property OPEIAtIONS ........civirirereetie ettt eie sttt a b sesenesmess e be e eseane e 42,372 41,242 41,640
Depreciation and amOrtiZation..............oveeeeereevereerasiannenss ettt ettt et eaene 6,863 6,418 6,435
General and AdMENISITALIVE ......oiiivieieis et e e e et e e e eetnen e s e reettereeeeanerenaeses 2,526 2,134 2,052
Termination And TEIOCATION COSIS.....uuitititeeirrrreetrerereeeteeeesiese s eeeseresessaess s seesatrerseaesssessrereen —_ 1,169 —

51,761 50,963 50,127

EARNINGS BEFORE NET LOSSES ON DISPOSITIONS OF ASSETS, INTEREST,
MINORITY INTEREST, INCOME TAX BENEFIT AND DISCONTINUED

OPERATIONS 8,934 6,846 7,277
Net 1055e5 0N diSPOSItIONS OF ASSELS....cciivieiiririieietieiie ettt eri et e reete et ereereeneeaseressreene s ) (12) (543)
TIEETESE 1.ttt ettt et b e st es ettt a et ete bttt sa e b b e et aeb e s b e b (5,939) (5,559) (6,244)
MUDIOTILY IMEETES .. eievit v eeieeieeee et eie s et ese et ae e ere s ennanead SRS RO TP (226) (218) (270}
EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 2,747 1,057 220
INCOME tAX DENETIL. ..ottt ettt s as et s et aba s e ne e b saeessasreastaesaeas 30 (242) (61)
EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 2,778 1,299 281
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations net of income tax benefit .............cccoo.... —_ (67) (233)

Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of impairment provision and income taxes.... — 745 961
Income from diSCONUNUEd OPETAIONS ... covviivieieiriieritieeeie et e ste e et e e asbeesbe st esbeasbesaresasanrans — 678 728
NET EARNINGS ..ottt ettt st ettt abea et s sb e bess et sessteernsnnans 2,778 1,977 1,009
Preferred StoCK DIVIAEnd .. ..ottt e et etean e (6) —_ —
NET EARNINGS AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $ 2772 % 1,977 $ 1,009
NET EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED:
CONUNUING OPETATONS ......vovv s evoteeietets i evetsee bt st et e eea st s bt ses et ettt s s et ens s abenssesebe re e s e $ 023 § 011 § 0.02
DiSCONUNUEA OPETATIONS......iiveveiitiirirritisieeseere s e et es v et s esaevestesaess s an et eaebentasserestaeenesbenseaseasenens — 0.05 0.06
INEE BATTIIES v ieventeerereeereitirent et et et sraeseasbestee b esaeseseas shesbaesas s ereet e ae shanbesaesbeenentastereasbeseebn et beneansentnenes $ 023 § 0.16 § 0.08

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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|

Balance at Dece‘mber 31,2002 .......

Conversion of operating partnership

units to common Stock ................

Common Dividends - $.17 per share

Net earnings......oooeeervieseernsnninenns

|

Balance at December 31, 2003 .......

Conversion of operating partnership

units to common stock .................

Common Dividends - $.20 per share

Net earnings........cccvcvvveviriciorennnens
Balance at December 31, 2004 .......

Conversion of c‘Lperating partnership

units to common SEOCK vovvivie e

Common Dividends - $.26 per share

Preferred Stock( offering .......ccoccc......
Preferred Dividends.......cccorvvvecnee.
Net earnings...L.ccocevnviniirorncnennennens

J

Balance at December 31, 2005 .......

Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Distributions in

Preferred Preferred Stk Common Additional Paid- Excess of
Warrants Stock In Capital Retained Earnings Totatl

-— — 5 113 8 49,776 $ (10,520) $ 39,369
—_ — 7 1,722 — 1,729
— — — — (2,048)  (2,048)
— — — — 1,009 1,009
— — 5 126 $ 51,498 §$ (11,559) $ 40,059
— — 1 87 — 88
_ — _ — (2,412) (2,412)
— _ — — 1,977 1,977
—_ — 5 121§ 51,585 § (11,994) § 39,712
— — — 41 — 41
— _ — — (3,137) (3.137)

15 53 — 13,995 — 14,063
_ — — — (6) (6)
— — —_ — 2,778 2,778

15 53 % 121 $ 65,621 $ (12,359) $ 53,451

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

December 31,

; 2005 2004 2003
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: -
NEC CAITHNES vovveveeiirereeriireeeae e eeesie st ebe e sre e evecnens et $ 2,778  $ 1,977 § 1,009
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating
activities:
DIEPIECIALION 1ttt ettt et sttt etae st e bt st aab et sss e enba e 6,851 6,488 6,896
Amortization of intangible assets and deferred financing costs..........c.coeev.ev. 379 228 308
Net (gains) losses on dispositions of assets .......... et e e bttt anee s 2 (733) (2,487
Provision for impairment 108S....c.c.ccecnirriniincrinni s — — 2,069
Write-off of assets related to relocation COStS....covvirviiiniveiiiiiiicciiriieenes — 91 —
Imputed interest on NOLES PAYADIE ....ccvivrrirvei i (155) — —
MINOTILY INEETEST ...evviivrievieireicreti et siearaomeesteesaeeeaesseasearee s e s e esbesraeaseeasssnsnns 226 218 270
Changes in operating assets and 1iabilities: .......c.ciovevrveinceinrennincccnncne.
(Increase) decrease in asSELS ........coevevveveeeeeens ........................................ (1,761) 251 2,332
Increase (decrease) in Habilities ......occvevvrveireeieiriniicecce e 1,895 603 (276)
Net cash provided by operating ACHVIEES oveo e, 10,215 9,123 10,121
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to hote] PTOPEITIES ....ec.viiiriciiiiiiiire e et (6,363) (3,923) (4,642)
Acquisition of hotel properties ..o (25,998) — —
Proceeds from sale of hotel assets .....cccoviiiiiniiviiisiinii e 6 3,726 13,527
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities ..........coovvvecrennenns (32,355) (197 8,885
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Deferred financing costs......coorvviirenieviinniniceiciennae herteeetreerrre s e reereestbeebeesarees (580) (88) 30
Principal payments on long-term debt........cooviiiiin e 9,137 (17,233) (17,444)
Proceeds from long-term debt .....ccoooiiiiiiiiviicr e 22,952 11,040 780
Redemption of operating partnership units .........coocivvninciiiniincnicnninneens (1,174) — {1,808)
Distributions to MINOTItY PATIIELS ....ccvieirieririiieinitienireir e sieeneeeteeassresere s seanees 215) 219) (274)
Preferred STOCK OFFEriNG ......c.cveviveeviieee oo etee et eee 14,063 — —
Dividends paid........ccccocoveviriiininieiecie e, s (2,923) (2,412) (1,446)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities............ccoccocrrnnne 22,986 (8,912) (20,222)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.................. et b b e e —ae e b e earnraeennes 846 14 (1,216)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR........c..ccoeveninenn, 317 303 1,519
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR .......co.ccooooomieeenirenenn, $ 1,163 $ 317§ 303
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid, net of amounts Capitalized ........co.occvirieriiriiereiveie e $ 5203 % 5906 $ 6,074
INCOME taXes PALA ....ooviiiiiiiieiec e — — —
SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends declared......c.c.ooovviiiviriiieeee e s $ 3,143 § 2412 % 2,048
Conversion of operating partnership units................... ettt $ 41 % 88 $ 1,729
Issuance of operating partnership Umits ...........cccoircciiniininiiineec e $ 2793 § — 3 —
Assumed debt from Wells Fargo on Sleep Inn.........ccoovocnvviricrrieeicincnrenns $ 807 $ — 3 —
Assumed debt from GE on South Bend.....c..ovvenneae. et e et ee s et e et eernes $ 6,123 $ — —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Note 1. Orga{nization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business
]
Superte;,l Hospitality, Inc. (SHI) was incorporated on August 23, 1994. SHI is a self-administered real estate investment
trust (REIT) for Federal income tax purposes.

SHI, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Supertel Hospitality REIT Trust and E&P REIT Trust (collectively, the
“Company”)Jowns a controlling interest in Supertel Limited Partnership (“SLP”) and E&P Financing Limited Partnership
(“E&P LP™).| All of the Company’s interests in 70 properties with the exception of furniture, fixtures and equipment held by
TRS Leasing, Inc. are held directly or indirectly by E&P LP, SLP or Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership (SBILP)
(collectwely,J the “Partnerships™). The Company’s interest in six properties are held directly by either SPPR-Hotels, LLC
(SHLLC) or SPPR South Bend, LLC (SSBLLC). SHI is the sole general partner in SLP and at December 31, 2005, owned
appr0x1mately 96% of the Units in SLP. SLP is the general partner in SBILP. At December 31, 2005, SLP and SHI owned
99% and 1% interests in SBILP, respectively, and SHI owned 100% of Supertel Hospitality Management, Inc and SPPR

Holdings, Inc. (SPPRHI), SLP and SPPRHI owned 99% and 1% of SHLLC, respectively, and SLP owned 100% of SSBLLC.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company, through the Partnerships, owned 76 limited service hotels (the “hotels”) and
one office bulldmg The hotels are leased to the Company’s wholly owned taxable REIT subsidiary, TRS Leasing, Inc, and
its wholly owned subsidiaries TRS Subsidiary, LLC and SPPR TRS Subsidiary, LLC (collectively “TRS Lessee”), and were
managed by}Humphrey Hospitality Management, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary, Supertel Hospitality Management,
Inc. (“SHMI”) (collectively “HHM?), through July 31, 2004 at which time the contract with HHM was terminated. Effective
August 1, 2004 the TRS Lessee entered into a new hotel management agreement with Royal Host Management, Inc.,
(RHM). RHM is a subsidiary of Royal Host, Inc. a Canada based publicly owned Reali Estate Investment Trust Wthh is an
owner, franchisor and manager of limited and focused service hotel properties in the United States and Canada. The
agreement with RHM provides for a base management fee representing 4.75% and 4.00% of hotel revenue, on 70 and 6

hotels, respe;ctively.

For th}}e year ended 2003 and through July 31, 2004, James 1. Humphrey, Jr., the sole shareholder of HHM, was a
director of the Company. Paul Schulte, the Company’s Chairman of the Board, served as President of SHMI for an annual
compensation package of one dollar ($1.00) through the year ended December 31, 2003 and for the period ended July 31,
2004. No other member of the Company’s board had a financial interest in HHM.

|

Effective August 2004, SHMI was acquired by SHIL

Principles of Consolidation

The c(onsolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, the Partnerships and the TRS Lessee. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of Presentation

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and revenues and
expenses recognized during the reporting period. The significant estimates pertain to impairment analysis and allocation of
purchase price (SFAS No. 141). Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Capitalization Policy

Acquisition, development and construction costs of properties in development are capitalized including, where
applicable, direct and indirect costs, including real estate taxes and interest costs. Development and construction costs and
costs of significant improvements, replacements, renovations to furniture and equipment expenditures for hotel properties are
capitalized while costs of maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

Deferred Financing Cost

Direct costs incurred in financing transactions are capitalized as deferred costs and amortized to interest cost over the
term of the related loan using the effective interest method.

Investment in Hotel Properties

Hotel properties to be held and used in operations are recorded at cost and reduced for impairment losses where
appropriate. Hotel properties held for sale are carried at the lower of their carrying value (i.e., cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment loss recognized, where applicable) or estimated fair value less costs to sell. The net carrying
values of hotel properties are classified as held for sale when senior management authorizes their disposition, the Company
begins marketing the properties for sale and various other criteria for a plan of sale are met. Depreciation of these properties
is discontinued at that time, but operating revenues, other operating expenses and interest continue to be recognized until the
date of sale. Revenues and expenses of properties that are classified as held for sale or sold are presented as discontinued
operations for all periods presented in the statements of operations if the properties will be or have been sold on terms where
the Company has limited or no continuing involvement with them after the sale. If active marketing ceases or the properties
no longer meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale, the properties are reclassified as operating and measured at the
lower of their (a) carrying amount before the properties were classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation expense
that would have been recognized had the properties been continuously classified as operating or (b) their fair value at the date
of the subsequent decision not to sell. j

If events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a hotel property to be held and used may be impaired, a
recoverability analysis is performed based on estimated undiscounted future cash flows to be generated from the property. If
the analysis indicates that the carrying value is not recoverable from future cash flows, the property is written down to
estimated fair value and an impairment loss is recognized.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from
20 to 40 years for buildings and 5 to 12 years for furniture, fixtures and equipment.
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Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Note 1. Orggnization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Gains ‘}from sales of hotel properties are recognized using the full accrual method provided that various criteria relating
to the terms Iof the transactions and any subsequent involvement by the Company with the properties sold are met. Gains
relating to the transactions that do not meet the established criteria are deferred and recognized when the criteria are met or
using the installment or cost recovery methods, as appropriate in the circumstances.

|

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash zrmd cash equivalents include cash and various highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months

| . . . . .
or less when acquired, and are carried at cost which approximates fair value.

Revenue Recognition
{
\ . . .
Revenues from the operations of the hotel properties are recognized when earned.

Income Taxes

[
The C‘Iompany qualifies and intends to continue to qualify as a REIT under applicable provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code, as amended. In general, under such Code provisions, a trust which has made the required election and, in the
taxable year, meets certain requirements and distributes to its shareholders at least 90% of its REIT taxable income will not

be subject to Federal income tax to the extent of the income which it distributes. Earnings and profits, which determine the

taxability of dividends to shareholders, differ from net income reported for financial reporting purposes due primarily to
differences[in depreciation of hotel properties for Federal tax purposes. Except with respect to the TRS Lessee, the Company

does not believe that it will be liable for significant Federal or state income taxes in future years.

Deferred income taxes relate primarily to the TRS Lessee and are accounted for using the asset and liability method.
Under this hethod deferred income taxes are recognized for temporary differences between the financial reporting bases of
assets and habllmes of the TRS Lessee and their respective tax bases and for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards
based on enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such amounts are realized or settled. However, deferred tax assets
are recogm‘zed only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be realized based on consideration of available

evidence, i}ncluding tax planning strategies and other factors.

Undt“er the REIT Modernization Act (“RMA”), which became effective January 1, 2001, the Company is permitted to
lease its hotels to one or more whoily owned taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRS”) and may continue to qualify as a REIT
provided tl}lat the TRS enters into management agreements with an “eligible independent contractor” that will manage the
hotels leased by the TRS. The Company formed the TRS Lessee and, effective January 1, 2002, the TRS Lessee leased all of
the hotel prroperties. The TRS Lessee is subject to taxation as a C-Corporation. The TRS Lessee has incurred operating losses
for ﬁnancial reporting and Federal income tax purposes for 2005, 2004 and 2003.

In October 1999, the Company and the old Supertel Hospitality, Inc., merged and the Company was the surviving
entity. In 2005 the Company changed its name to Supertel Hospltahty, Inc. In connection with its election to be taxed as a
REIT, the rCompany has elected to be subject to the “built-in gain” rules. Under these rules,

!
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

taxes may be payable at the time and to the extent that the net unrealized gains on assets acquired in a 1999 merger with the
old Supertel are recognized in taxable dispositions of such assets in the subsequent ten-year period. This ten-year period
expires October 2009. The Company had no built-in gains taxes in 2005. The Company recognized built-in gains taxes of
$286 due to dispositions of properties in 2004 and $178 in 2003.

Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments approximate their carrying values in the financial statements, except for long-term
debt for which fair value information is presented in Note 5.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing earnings available to common sharcholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted EPS is computed after adjusting the numerator and denominator of
the basic EPS computation for the effects of any dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period, if any. The
weighted average number of shares used in the basic EPS computation for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were 12,062,000, 12,054,000
and 12,045,000 respectively.

At December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 there were appkoximately 372,000, 10,000 and 20,000, respectively of SLP
common operating units outstanding. These units have been excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation as there
would be no effect on the amounts allocated to the common unit holders (whose units are convertible on a one-to-one basis to
common shares) since their share of income would be added back to income. In addition, the 195,610 shares of SLP preferred
operating units are antidilutive. ‘

At December 31, 2005, there were 1,521,258 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and 126,311 preferred
stock warrants issued to Anderson & Strudwick. The effect of dilutive Series A convertible preferred stock and preferred
stock warrants for the two days ending December 31, 2005 was the equivalent of approximately 15,979 shares of common
stock outstanding. Because the preferred stock calculation was anti-dilutive and the exercise price of the warrants exceeded
the market price of the common stock and convertible preferred stock, these incremental shares were excluded from the
computation of diluted earnings per share. See additional information regarding preferred stock and warrants in Note 8.

Minority Interest

Minority interest in the operating partnership represents the limited partners’ proportionate share of the equity in the
operating partnership. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, 4,434, 10,479 and 731,234 units of limited partnership
interest were redeemed by unit holders. At December 31, 2005, the aggregate partnership interest held by the limited partners
in the operating partnership was approximately 4.00%. Income is allocated to minority interest based on the weighted
average percentage ownership throughout the year. The limited partner’s common operating units were increased by 366,916
in the 2005. See additional information regarding operating partnership units in Note 8.
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The JCompany maintained a major portion of its deposits with Great Western Bank, a Nebraska Corporation at
December 31, 2005 and US Bank National Association (“US Bank™) at December 31, 2004, The balance on deposit at Great
Western Bank and US Bank exceeded the federal deposit insurance limit; however, management believes that no significant
credit risk exists with respect to the uninsured portion of this cash balance. A change of the primary depository for the

Company was made in January 2005 from US Bank to Great Western Bank.

Note 2. Acquisitions

On I\ilovember 7, 2005 the Company acquired five hotels from the Independent Property Operators of America, LLC
(IPOA). Four of the hotels are located in Indiana and one in North Carolina. On November 30, 2005 the Company acquired a
sixth hotel‘from IPOA located in Indiana. The aggregate purchase price of the six hotels was approximately $32.1 million, of

which $6.] million was assumed debt and $26 million was paid in cash.

All of the hotels acquired in 2005 were considered to be compatible with the Company’s overall hotel business
strategy.

The results of the acquired properties’ operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements since
their dates 1of acquisition.

The followmg table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired as well as the liabilities assumed for the
IPOA propertles as of the date of the acquisition.

Investment in properties:

LI ..o $ 4355

BUIIAING ..ottt ettt b e st st et s b e besa et e b e se st e e s eabene et et ensenteranbene 24,239

Furniture, Fixtures & EQUIPIMENt......cccoiiiiiiiiii ittt et 3,527
Total aSSELS ACQUITE ....cvvveeuiierieeritet ettt et eb et b bt er e et st sren et st aee $ 32,121

LOMGEIIT BB ...ttt et st b et e e ettt es e abasb e e e e ee b teastesae s ems et asbe st sase e e eneanbasras $ 6,123
Total 1HabIlIties ASSUIMEA ... ..uuvviviieiiiiieiiie e viir e ee s esertreeeeeeeeiesssbtaeersesssessssrereseessesiesrestesessesnns 6,123

NEt ASSELS ATUITEA ...oveveieviieieeti vttt ettt sttt st et et st e b e be st ese b e st st e e st eaes et et es e e esasbeneseebe s erenes $ 25998

The 1nvestment in properties represents the estimated fair value of the hotel properties based on the purchase price. The
long-term debt reflects $6,123 of assumed mortgage note payable at 7.41% per annum.

In addition to the IPOA acquisition, on September 1, 2005 the Company acquired a Sleep-Inn hotel in Omaha,
Nebraska fpr $3.6 million through the assumption of $807 of debt and the issuance of 633,047 common operating units in
Supertel Limited Partnership valued at $2,793. As the common operating units are convertible to the Company’s common
shares on a one for one basis, their value was based on a five business day average ending August 31, 2005 of the Company’s
closing common share price which amounted to $4.412 per share. Immediately following the issuance of the 633,047
common operating units, holders of 266,131 units submitted the units for $1,174 in cash which resulted in 366,916 of the

common operating units remaining after this transaction.
|
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The following unaudited pro forma financial statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004 give effect to the above transactions as if they had occurred at the beginning of their respective periods.

The unaudited pro forma financial data do not purport to represent what the Company’s results of operations would
actually have been if the transactions had in fact occurred on the dates discussed above. They also do not project or forecast
the Company’s results of operations for any future date or period.

2005 2004
Pro Forma Pro Forma
: Consolidated Consolidated
REVEIIUES ...ttt e e et e seea e s s tee e bt e e et s e st e s s et e e e s e e e etbene s e aeesraaeeseereae s $ 71,274 $ 69,822
Earnings from Continuing OPerations ........cooeeiiiiiiiiiii b s $ 2939 § 1,310
NEE CAITIINES 1. cvcvvvveiereeeveiese s et te e s bt esae e ssete e sa s e teses s ba s abase e o4k eai st e st es et e basesas s sate et enesebasesesnsensaras $ 2,939 $% 1,988
NEt CAMINGS PET SHATE ...vevieseeiee ettt ettt ettt ee st e b s se et esebes b s ases e b b nbesetas s sesennsnenas $ 024 % 0.16

The pro forma statement of operations reflects the acquisition of seven hotels. The information presented represents
the activity for these acquired properties from and including January 1, for the years presented to, but not including, the date
of our acquisition. The pro forma statement reflects the following adjustments:

*  Hotel operating expenses reflect the cost reductions resulting from reduced management fees, insurance expense
and the elimination of an excess administrative position, offset by an increase in franchise fees.

*  Depreciation expense is adjusted for acquired depreciable basis.

» Interest expense includes the additional interest and amortization of deferred financing costs related to the additional
debt entered into and assumed on acquisition.

Note 3. Investments in Hotel Properties

Investments in hotel properties consisted of the following at December 31:

2005 2004
LA, oot ettt ettt e $ 21,514 § 16,759
Buildings and iMPrOVEMENLS .....cc.coeiieiieieriirceeereneeiers sttt see e sne s 147,082 117,402
Furniture and eqUIPMENt.........coocoiviriiiriiie ettt e, 35,534 29,661
CONSITUCHON-TN-PIOZIESS .oveeectiriieieresiet e er ettt sttt sbe s s st senee st e see s nene e 1,039 69
: 205,169 163,891
Less accumulated depreciation..........oueevriverecrvenrvnen. ettt n ettt ese e 55,399 49,346

$ 149,770 $ 114,545

Note 4. Net Gains (Losses) on Sales of Properties, Impairment Losses and Discontinued Operations

In accordance with SFAS 144, gains, losses and impairment losses on hotel properties sold or classified as held for sale
on or after January 1, 2002 are presented in discontinued operations. Gains (losses) on sales of hotel properties and
impairment losses on hotel properties are summarized as follows:
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2005 2004 2003
Continuing Operations
Sales OF PrOPEIHES .........eveivreererevaererraninssesessissesasssssesessnsnes $ — 3 — 3 —
IMPairment LOSSES .....cccoeeriiiiriiiiniereenercenreanesersessiensnenns — — —
| INCOME TAXES corveveereieeeseerereeeee et ne e — — (525)
L0SS 0N SAle OF ASSELS.....iicvvieiiiirieriec e eeree e et sene e 2) (12) (18)
( 2) (12) (543)
Discontinued OPErationsS.....cooveieeeeeeiiriiiaiiiieieseire s rese e s — — —
| Sales of Properties . ....occeieinieiiecie e — 1,031 2,383
Impairment LOSSES ....ccvevveriirionniieie e — — (2,069)
INCOME TaAXES wvoviiiiiiiiee e —_— (286) 647
\ — 745 961
l TOMAL v ettt bttt et et b et saae e ean $ 2y $ 733§ 418

In 2001(5, the Company did not sell any hotels. In 2004, the Company recognized net gains on the disposition of assets
of approximately $733, due primarily to net gains on the sale of five hotels ($743, net of built-in gain taxes of $286). In 2003,
the Compan,ry recognized net gains on the disposition of assets of approximately $418, due primarily to net gains on the sale
of seven of the hotels classified for sale ($961, net of built-in gain taxes of $178,) and a provision for built-in gain taxes
which was reduced by $300 based on a tax planning strategy implemented in 2003 that resulted in a change in the allocation

of hotel salefs proceeds between the Company to the TRS Lessee.

In 20?5 and 2004, no impairment charges were recorded. In 2003, the Company recorded impairment charges on three
of the hotels classified for sale for $1,152 and two additional hotels which did not meet the Company’s criteria for
c1a531ﬁcat10n as held for sale at December 31, 2003 for $917, which were later sold during 2004.

The operatin results of hotel properties included in discontinued operations are summarized as follows:
|

Revenues ......................................................................................................................

" Hotel and PIOPEILY OPETALIONS EXPENSES ..vevverseerseererressesssasraresesasssssarsssssssssassasanssessanen.

2004 2003

$ 635 § 4,499
(636) (3,788)

Interest CXPEIISEC .. .eveveereerreerreeseeaeeeteseaartasrestsesseesseasetansessasseaenesanessneasnenstessssesserenessnene. 24) (542)
Depreciation and amortiZation EXPEINSE. ....cc.eeerereererrerrsreriesreereesiaaesersserssereassessessanca, (75) (461)
Net gain On diSPOSItions OF ASSELS.....v..vrurivrirreerirriseiesesses st ssssesss st sessseesens 745 3,030
Provision for IMPAITMENE 1SS «.vivieiiiiiie et eee ettt rassrens e saeserseveeteereaneas —_ (2,069)
33 59

IncJome TAX DEINETIE ...oviiiiie ettt b s ebe et be e et neetaesna s,
$ 678 $ 728
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Note 5. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following notes and mortgages payable at December 31:

2005

—

2004

Mortgage loan payable to Regions Bank, N.A., evidenced by a promissory note dated August 3,

1998, in the amount of $3 million. The note bears interest during a five-year period beginning

August 2003 at 4.875% per annum and thereafter during the remaining term at a rate equal to 250

basis points over the index rate as defined in the promissory note. The interest rate will be adjusted

every fifth anniversary. Monthly principal and interest payments are payable through maturity on

August 5, 2018, at which point the remaining principal and accrued interest are due. $ 2334

Mortgage loan payable to Susquehanna Bank, evidenced by a promissory note dated February 8,

1999, in the amount of approximately $5 million. The note bears interest at 7.75% per annum.

Monthly principal and interest payments are payable through maturity on February 8, 2009, at

which point the remaining principal and accrued interest are due. $ 4,506

Mortgage loan payable to Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc. (“Greenwich”), evidenced by

a promissory note dated November 26, 2002, in the amount of $40 million. The note bears interest

at 7.50% per annum. Monthly principal and interest payments are payable through maturity on

December 1, 2012, at which point the remaining principal and accrued interest are due. $ 37,238

Mortgage loan payable to First National Bank of Omaha evidenced by a promissory note in the

amount of $15 million dated October 20, 1999. The note bears interest at 8.4% per annum. Monthly

principal and interest payments are payable through maturity on November 1, 2009, at which point

the remaining principal and accrued interest are due. ‘ $ 11,283

Term loan credit facility from U.S. Bank National Association (“U.S. Bank™) evidenced by a

promissory note in the amount of $13 million dated October 20, 1999. The note bore interest at

8.31% per annum for the first three years and at LIBOR plus 2.25% in the fourth and fifth years,

determined by U.S. Bank at the beginning of each respective year. The interest rate at December 31,

2004 was 4.67%. Monthly principal and interest payments were payable through maturity on

January 15, 2005, at which point the remaining principal and accrued interest were due. This loan

was repaid on January 13, 2005 with the proceeds from a revolving credit facility obtained from

Great Western Bank. ' —

Revolving credit facility from U.S. Bank evidenced by a promissory note dated October 20, 1999

for up to $10 million bearing interest at the U.S. Bank National Association Prime Rate (5.00%) at

December 31, 2004, payable monthly with the outstanding principal and accrued interest payable in

full on December 31, 2005. This note was repaid on January 13, 2005 with the proceeds from a

revolving credit facility obtained from Great Western Bank.: —

Mortgage loans payable to First Citizens National Bank evidenced by promissory notes totaling

approximately $1 million. The loan obligations were assumed on October 19, 2000 in conjunction

with the acquisition of hotel assets. The sole remaining note bears interest at 6.92% per annum.

Principal and interest payments are due in monthly installments, with the note maturing on July 20,

2012. 3 457

Mortgage loan payable to Security State Bank evidenced by a promissory note in the amount of

approximately $0.2 million. The loan obligation was assumed on October 20, 2000 in conjunction

with the acquisition of hotel assets. The note bears interest at 8.5% per annum. Principal and

interest payments were due in monthly installments with the outstanding principal and interest

payable in full on November 1, 2005. Effective October 31, 2005 an extension agreement was

signed to extend the remaining balance to January 1, 2006. This note was paid in full December 30,

2005 with funds from our revolving credit facility from Great Western Bank. —
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Mortgage 1081"15 payable to Small Business Administration evidenced by promissory notes in the
aggregate amounts of approximately $0.9 million. The loan obligations were assumed on
October 23, 2000 October 19, 2000 and October 20, 2000, respectively, in conjunction with the
acquisition oﬁ hotel assets. The notes bear interest at 8.12%, 8.95%. and 6.71% per annum,
respectively. Principal and interest payments are due in monthly installments to January 1,

2017, December 11, 2011 and May 1, 2013, respectively. Two notes were paid off with the

remaining maturrty of May 1, 2013. $ 169 $ 185

Loan payable to Village Bank formerly known as Southern Community Bank & Trust evidenced by
a promissory|note in the amount of $2.7 million dated November 1, 2004. A letter of credit dated
November 1,/2004 in the amount of $0.2 million with Great Western Bank is funished as additional
collateral. The note bears interest at an initial interest rate of 6.50%, which will remain in effect for
the first 36 n(romhs, then adjusted to the three year Treasury Rate plus 3.75% every 36 months over
the remaining life of the loan. The loan will have a floor of 6.50% and a ceiling of 11.00%.

Principal and interest payments are due in monthly instaliments to November 1, 2024. $ 2611 § 2,679

Revolving credit facility from Great Western Bank evidenced by a promissory note dated

January 13, 2005 for up to $22 million (with a step-down to $20 million as of February 1, 2006)
bearing interest at the daily prime rate. Principal is due on January 13, 2007 and interest is payable
monthly. On‘ February 17, 2006, the Company entered into a First Amendment to Loan Agreement
with Great Western Bank which extends (a) the maturity date of the Loan Agreement dated January
13, 2005 befween the parties from January 13, 2007 to January 13, 2008 and (b) the date on which
the loan hmxt of the Loan Agreement is reduced from $22 million to $20 million from February 1,

2006 to February 13, 2007. $ 7,664 —

Revolving cfredrt facility from Wells Fargo evidenced by a promissory note dated December 1, 2005
with a maturlty of December 1, 2007, bearing a variable interest rate 0.125 below the lenders Prime
Rate. As of December 31, 2005 the rate charged was 7.125% per annum, payable monthly. $ 1,978 —

Mortgage lc?an payable to Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp., evidenced by a promissory note
dated November 7, 2005, in the amount of $14.8 million. The note bears interest at 5.97% per
annumn. Prmmpal and interest payments are due in monthly installments with the outstanding

principal and interest payable in full on November 11, 2015. $ 14,809 —

Mortgage loan payable to GE Capital Franchise Finance Corporation (“GE”), evidenced by a

promlssory} note dated May 30, 2002 with an original principal amount of $6.8 million, assumed as

of November 30, 2005 with a remaining principal amount of $6.1 million. The note bears interest at

a variable rate of one-month LIBOR plus 3.32%, reset monthly, the rate as of December 31, 2003

was 7.61%;. Principal and interest payments are due in monthly installments with the outstanding

principal and interest payable in full on June 1, 2012, $§ 6,114 —

\
Loan payable to Independent Property Operators of America, LLC (“IPOA”), evidenced by a
prormssory note dated November 30, 2005 in the amount of $3 million due in full at the maturity
date of November 30, 2006. The note does not bear interest. Therefore, an imputed interest rate was

|
assessed of 5.97%, providing an original discount amount of $169. $ 2,845 —

| $ 92,008 $ 71418

The long-term debt is secured by 75, 69 and 69 of the Company’s hotel properties, for the years ended 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectrvely In addition, the Company’s chairman and another director guaranteed, jointly and severally with the
Company,‘ the payment of interest and principal on $5 million of certain of the Company’s outstanding long-term debt with
US Bank. }As of December 31, 2003, the Company had indemnified these individuals should the respective lenders call on
these guarantees Effective January 13, 2005 in conjunction with the repayment in full of the US Bank debt, the personal
guarantees were terminated. The Company’s debt agreements contain requirements as to the maintenance of minimum levels

of debt sefvice coverage and loan-to-value ratios and net worth, and place certain restrictions on distributions.
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The Company files quarterly loan compliance certificates with certain of its lenders. The Company requested and
received under its term loan and revolving credit facility with US Bank, a waiver, which was effective from December 31,
2002 until the Company terminated the facility in January 2005, which permitted it to maintain a higher income to debt ratio
than permitted under the loan covenants.

As of September 30, 2004 the Company requested and received a loan to value and a debt service ratio waiver with
respect to a term loan with First National Bank of Omaha N.A. Ten of its hotels secure the $12 million term loan. The
Company had a loan to value ratio of 63% and a debt service ratio of 1.46:1 as compared to the covenant requirements of the
term loan of 60% and 1.5:1. The bank has agreed that through and including June 30, 2006, the loan to value ratio will be
determined using a capitalization rate of 11% for valuing the hotels {versus an original rate of 12%) and the debt service
coverage ratio will be 1.35:1.

Aggregate annual principal payments and paymentsto bond sinking funds for the next five years and thereafter are as
follows:

2006 ..o cericeeeee et e et ettt et nae v te et e eae et e are b e bt e re et eraeans $ 5,373

2007 oottt e et e b e aae s e e b e reaeateetee st aeathe et teeaaveeaseesanee irteasstenseanirsaansaasss 12,366
08 ettt e e et e rr et e e abe e eeateebaenebestbeaareeenrseins 2,923

2009 . e et b et s e e b b e et s eaeeaerae e 15,609
20010 it ettt a et et r et e ne e anas 2,387
Thereafter ..o e ..................................................................... 53,350
$ 92008

On January 13, 2005, the Company completed a $22,000 revolving credit facility with Great Western Bank. The
borrowings from the new credit facility were used to pay the maturing US Bank term note and the US Bank revolving credit
facility with balances of $6,225 and $4,520 respectively, as of December 31, 2004. The remainder of the maturities in 2005
consisted of principal amortization on other mortgage loans.

At December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 , the estimated fair values of long-term debt were approximately $95,800,
76,500 and $77,600, respectively. The fair values were estimated by discounting future cash payments to be made at rates
that approximate rates currently offered for loans with similar maturities.

Interest expense on debt that is to be assumed by the buyer and interest expense on debt that is required to be repaid as
a result of a disposal transaction is allocated to discontinued operations.
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I Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Note 6. Income Taxes

The RI\(/IA was included in the Tax Relief Extension Act of 1999, which was enacted into law on December 17, 1999,
The RMA in¢ludes numerous amendments to the provisions governing the qualification and taxation of REITs, and these
amendments 'were effective J anuary 1, 2001. One of the principal provisions included in the Act provides for the creation of
TRS. TRS are corporations that are permitted to engage in nonqualifying REIT activities. A REIT is permitted to own up to
100% of the Jvoting stock in a TRS. Previously, a REIT could not own more than 10% of the voting stock of a corporation
conducting nonqualifying activities. Relying on this legislation, in November 2001, the Company formed the TRS Lessee.

As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to corporate level Federal income tax on taxable income it
distributes cﬁrrently to stockholders. If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, it will be subject to
Federal income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) and may not be able to
qualify as a REIT for four subsequent taxable years. Even if the Company qualifies for taxation as a REIT, it may be subject
to certain sta(te and local taxes on its income and property and to Federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed taxable

income. In addmon taxable income of a TRS is subject to Federal, state and local income taxes.

In con)nection with the Company’s election to be taxed as a REIT, it has also elected to be subject to the “built-in gain
rules on the assets formerly held by the old Supertel. Under these rules, taxes will be payable at the time and to the extent that
the net unreahzed gains on assets at the date of conversion to REIT status are recogmzed in taxable dispositions of such

assets in the ten- -year period following conversion.

At De}cember 31, 20035, the income tax bases of the Company’s assets and liabilities excluding those of TRS were
approx1mately $120,254 and $79,273, respectively; December 31, 2004 were approximately $83,014 and $62,791,

respectlvely{

/
The TRS net operating loss carryforward from December 31, 2005 as determined for Federal income tax purposes was
approximately $867. The availability of such loss carryforward will begin to expire in 2023.
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Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 consists of the following:

2005 2004 2003
Federal State Total Federal State Total Federal State Total
Cutrent .o.o.vovvevveeeecerenn. $ - % - 5 - $§ - % - $ - % — %5 — 5 —
Deferred ....oooovoeveienie. (26) 3 3D (227 (48) (275) 99) (28] (120)
Total......ccovveeverireiirinin $ (26) $ S $. 3BDS$S (@21 s (48 $ (275 $ 99) $ @D $ (120)
The actual income tax expense of the TRS for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 differs from the
“expected” income tax expense (computed by applying the appropriate U.S. Federal income tax rate of 34% to earnings
before income taxes) as a result of the following: ‘
2005 2004 2003
Computed “expected” INCOME LaX DENETIL.......c.ooiiiriiriiiiiciiiit et e srs e e e resreeneae e $ 49) $ (237) $ (103)
State income taxes, net Federal inCome tax DENETIl .......ooeiiiviiiiiciic e et vee e s s ear e s (3) 32) (14)
N ittt er e bttt tb e ser e an b b et nes e b 21 6) 3)

$ @3N $ (275) § (120)

43




Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ CONTINUED
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and the deferred

tax liability a}t December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 follows:

2005 2004 2003
Deferred Tax{ Assets:
Expens‘es accrued for consolidated financial statement purposes, nondeductible for tax
TELUITL PUTPOSES «ovvvvvveervetiseteeseseseassssesesasessssssasesssesesssesasasasesssssssesesssasssasesassssssssasesesesssens $ 92 % 137 $ 134
Net operating losses carried forward for federal income tax purposes.........ccovcvveerernernnecan, 347 251 24
1‘"otal deferred taX ASSELS...cciiierririiirr et e 439 388 158
Deferred Lia{bilities:
Tax d?preciation in excess Of book dEPreciation.........cccecvireciiincoininne e 853 833 878
?."otal deferred tax Habilities ......c.cociviiciiniiii 853 833 878
Net deferred tax HADIIHES .....eveveiirerireec sttt st s bbbt $ 414 $ 445 $ 720

In assessing|the reliability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.
Managemer}rt considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning
strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections of future taxable
income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not the
Company \xr}ill realize the benefits of these deductible differences. There is no valuation allowance at December 31, 2005,

2004 or 2093.
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Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies and Other Related Party Transactions

Effective July 31, 2004, the TRS Lessee terminated its hotel management agreement with HHM, paying HHM a $500
early termination fee in addition to agreeing to reimburse HHM for certain employment-related severance costs of
approximately $189.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, accounts payable and accrued expense includes $888, and $79, respectively, due to
HHM. On January 1, 2002, the TRS Lessee purchased accounts receivable aggregating approximately $781 from HHM in
exchange for a note payable to HHM of the same amount, originally due April 30, 2002 and bearing interest at a rate of 4%.
The note was repaid in full in July 2003.

On August 1, 2004, the TRS Lessee entered into a hotel management agreement with Royal Host Management, Inc., a
publicly owned real estate investment trust. Royal Host, the parent of Royal Host Management, is an owner, franchisor and
manager of limited and focused service hotel properties in the United States and Canada.

The principal provisions of the agreement are as follows:

*  Royal Host Management is paid a base fee equal to 4.75% of gross hotel income on 70 hotels and 4.00% of gross
hotel income on 6 hotels; ‘

* if annual net operating income exceeds 10% of the Company’s total investment in the hotels, then Royal Host
receives an incentive fee of 10% of the excess net operating income up to the first $1 million, and 20% of excess
net operating income above $1 million;

» the agreement runs through December 31, 2009 and is automatically extended for five years thereafter if specific
net operating income levels are achieved, subject to Royal Host Management’s option not to extend the agreement;

*  either party may terminate the agreement if net operating income is not at least 8.5% of the Company’s total
investment in the hotels or if the Company undergoes a change in control (if TRS Lessee terminates the agreement
for a change in control, then Royal Host Management is paid a termination fee equal to 50% of its basic
management fee for the prior 12 months);

+ TRS Lessee may terminate the agreement if any of the hotels fails three successive franchisor inspections if the
deficiencies are within the reasonable control of Royal Host Management; and

* TRS Lessee may also terminate the agreement if tax laws change to allow a hotel REIT to self manage its
properties (in which event we would pay Royal Host Management a termination fee equal to 50% of its basic
management fee for the prior 12 months).
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In January 2003, the Company obtained a $780 loan from Southern Community Bank & Trust (“Southern™). George R.
Whittemore, |Director of the Company, is a member of the Board of Directors of Southern. Further information about the loan
from Southern is presented in Note 5.

From January 2003 until August 2004, the Company paid rents and other charges to HHM for the office space it
occupied in Columbla MD. The Company paid base rents of $62 and $71 to HHM for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company assumed land lease agreements in conjunction with purchases of two hotels. One lease requires monthly
payments of|the greater of $2 or 5% of room revenue through November 2091. The second lease requires an annual payment
of $35 through May 2025. Land lease expense totaled approximately $89, $ 86 and $83 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively,
and is included in property operating expense.

|

As of December 31, 2005, the future minimum lease payments applicable to non-cancelable land leases are as follows:

Total

2000 oo et e et e e e e aer e s ee st eae e et et e e e e ateaanaans $ 59

200 e e e vt r e s et —e s e a— —erttee s e  — b er et et et bt bete et eseiararrees e e sbareeses 59
2008 oottt eee e 59

( 2009 1.vvooeoeeeeeeeeee e et et et ettt 59
T O 59
T IETATTET .ottt e et ee st att e e st e st e e aen e s e s e e sabesasesaeesebeeabesebestaessaesssenssessentnineas 2,447
} $ 2,742

Note 8. Capital Stock and Operating Partnership Units

The Compq‘ny’s common stock is duly authorized, full paid and non-assessable. At December 31, 2005, members of the
Board of Directors owned approximately 23% of the Company’s outstanding common stock.

|

At Decemb‘er 31, 20085, 372,195 of SLP’s common operating partnership units (“Common OP Units”) and 195,610 of SLP’s
preferred operating partnership units (“Preferred OP Units”) were outstanding. Each limited partner of SLP may, subject to
certain limitations, require that SLP redeem all or a portion of his or her Common OP Units or Preferred OP Units, at any
time after 4 specified period following the date he or she acquired the units, by delivering a redemption notice to SLP. When
a limited pénner tenders his or her Common OP Units to SLP for redemption, the Company can, in its sole discretion, choose
to purchasé the units for either (1) a number of shares of Company commeon stock equal to the number of units redeemed
(subject to|certain adjustments) or (2) cash in an amount equal to the market value of the number of shares of Company
common stock the limited partner would have received if the Company chose to purchase the units for common stock. The
Preferred @P Units are convertible by the holders into Common OP Units on a one-for-one basis or may be redeemed for
cash at $10 per unit until October 2009. The Preferred OP Units receive a preferred dividend distribution of $1.10 per
preferred dnlt annually, payable on a monthly basis and do not participate in the allocations of profits and losses of SLP.
During 2005 and 2004, 4,434 and 10,479 respectively, Common OP Units were redeemed for common shares of SHI and no
preferred units were redeemed for cash or converted to common stock. In addition, the Company agreed to allow the

redemptim:l of 127,439 Preferred OP Units at any time, subject to a 60-day notification period.
j
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On January 3, 2003, James 1. Humphrey, Jr., a director of the Company at that time and the sole shareholder of HHM at
December 31, 2003, exercised his redemption rights and caused SHI to redeem his Common OP Units in exchange for
731,234 shares of common stock of the Company. Following the redemption, Mr. Humphrey held 5,279 Common OP Units
through a company he controlled (Humphrey Associates, Inc.). These Common OP Units are also subject to redemption.

On December 30, 2005 the Company offered and sold 1,521,258 shares of 8% Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.
The shares were sold for $10.00 per share and bear a liquidation preference of $10.00 per share. Underwriting and other costs
of the offering totaled $1.2 million. The proceeds were used to reduce borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit
facility with Great Western Bank.

Dividends on the Series A Convertible Preferred stock are cumulative and are payable monthly in arrears on the last
day of each month, at the annual rate of 8% of the $10.00 liquidation preference per share, equivalent to a fixed annual
amount of $.80 per share. Dividends on the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock accrue regardless of whether or not the
Company has earnings, whether there are funds legally available for the payment of such dividends and whether or not such
dividends are declared. Unpaid dividends will accumulate and earn additional dividends at 8%, compounded monthly.

The Series A convertible preferred stock with respect to dividend rights and rights upon the Company’s liquidation,
dissolution or winding up, ranks senior to all classes or series of the Company’s common stock, senior or on parity with all
other classes or series of preferred stock and junior to all of the Company’s existing and future indebtedness. Upon
liquidation all preferred stock will be entitled to $10.00 per:share plus accrued but unpaid dividends. The Company will not
pay any distributions, or set aside any funds for the payment of distributions, on its common shares unless it has also paid (or
set aside for payment) the full cumulative distributions on the preferred shares for the current and all past dividend periods.
The outstanding preferred shares do not have any maturity date, and are not subject to mandatory redemption.

Each share of Series A convertible preferred stock is convertible in whole or in part, at any time at the option of the
holders thereof, into common stock at a conversion price of $5.66 per share of common stock (equivalent to a conversion rate
of 1.77 shares of common stock for each share of Series A convertible preferred stock) subject to certain adjustments. The
Company may not optionally redeem the Series A preferred shares prior to January 1, 2009, except in limited circumstances
to preserve its status as a REIT. “

The conversion rights of the holders of the Series A convertible preferred stock are subject to cancellation on or after
December 31, 2008 if the closing price of the Company common stock on the Nasdaq National Market exceeds $7.36 for at
least 20 trading days within any period of 30 consecutive trading days. The Company will issue a conversion cancellation
notice to holder of the Series A convertible preferred stock specifying the date the conversion rights will be deemed cancelled
if the holder chooses to exercise this option. In the event the. Company issues a conversion cancellation notice, the Series A
convertible preferred stock will be redeemable on or after January 1, 2009 for cash, at the Company’s option, in whole or
from time to time in part, at $10.00 per share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends to the redemption date. Otherwise the Series
A convertible preferred stock will be redeemable for cash, at the Company’s option in whole or from time to time in part, at:

$10.80 per share on or after January 1, 2009
$10.40 per share on or after January 1, 2010; and
$10.00 per share on or after January 1, 2011,

plus accrued and unpaid dividends to the redemption date.
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On December 30, 2003, the Company issued warrants to Anderson & Strudwick Incorporated, the selling agent for the
Company in i‘its public offering of the Series A Preferred Stock, to purchase 126,311 shares of Series A convertible preferred
stock. The warrants will be exercisable until December 31, 2010 at $12.00 per share of Series A convertible preferred stock.
The warrants may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned or hypothecated for a period of one year after their issuance,

|
except to officers of the selling agent.
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Note 9. Supplementary Data

The following table presents our unaudited quarterly results of operations:

Quarters Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2005 2005 2005 2005

2008
REVEIUES ..ottt ettt bt iae e s teens $ 12,307 $ 16,126 § 17,372 § 14,890
EXPEIISES .. etiereiiieiieeierie sttt ettt ettt e 13,020 14,399 14,969 15,332
Earnings (loss) before net gains (losses) on sales of properties,:

impairment losses and MIinority INtETESt .......c.ccovvvmrrruireeeeecivecrenerreeeis (713) 1,727 2,403 (442)
Net gains (losses) on sales of Properties.....cocvvweimireiininnenie e I 1 1 3)
IMPAITMENE J0SSES.....ccuviiriiiiieiriietiniereeeecrtesre et es et ettt — — — —
MINOTILY INEETESE..vioveveeeiireirecreete et e ceste oot ebeesee e esae reereene s eseeneessnne (53) (55) 73) (45)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income LAXES erverrerrrenenn, (767) 1,673 2,331 (490)
Income tax expense (benefit) ..o, (376) 239 372 (266)
Net €arnings (1088 ..occecererriiriniri e TR 391 1,434 1,959 (224)
Preferred Stockdividend.................................................,..........7 ................. — — — (6)
Net earnings (loss) available to common shareholders ............ccco.ccvrvernnnn. $ (G91) § 1434 § 1,959 % (230)
Net earnings (loss) per common share - basic and diluted ........0.cccooererenene, $ 0.03) § 012 $§ 0.16 $ (0.02)
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Quarters Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2004 2004 2004 2004
2004
REVEIUES .ovviivviionh ettt ettt eree e eee et ee b e s e st e e sebestba s e st e staesensaentaeareeins $ 12,182 §$ 15781 $ 16,841 % 13,005
Expenses............ ; ......................................................................................... 13264 14,298 15,709 13,253
Earnings (loss) before net gains (losses) on sales of properties,
impairment los“ses and MINOTity INLETESt .......ccovvrierieieiericnne e (1,082) 1,483 1,132 (248)

Net gains (losses)on sales of Properties.......coovurerernieiineierenierienesrerenenens 9 1 () 3
MINOLILY TNEETEST. L uiiiii oottt et es e s sraens 51 57 (55) (53)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes................. (1,142) 1,427 1,076 (304)
Income tax expen}se (DENELILY coviiviiiriiiie ettt cve v e e (573) 202 200 (71
Earnings (loss) from continling OPETations...........coowvcrreucrrreemocrccncneenne (569) 1,225 876 (233)
Discontinued OPETALIONS .....ccveveereerreerreerirsiteniererreeraererateeesssaseesmsessnsssesnns (115) 380 405 8
Net earnings (los{s) available to common shareholders .......c.ccooevvveiveecnennnn.. $ 684) $ 1,605 $ 1,281 $ (225)
Net earnings (loss) per common share - basic and diluted

CONtNUING OPETALIONS ..cvvvvvririetiririererereiesieeeiesrssesesrssesseeasesesassssereares $ (0.05) 0.10 % 008 % (0.02)

Discontinu%ed OPETALIONS ..oovvviviieisicrie e (0.01) 0.03 0.03 0.00

NEE CAITNES (10SS) cerereressersersessessereeesessersersreerseesessere S (006 S 013 S 0.11 $ 0.02)

ThereI were no impairment losses and no sale of properties for 2005.

ThereI were no impairment losses recorded for 2004. The amounts of gain on sales of properties are $67 ($.01 per
share), $329 ($.03 per share), $347 (8.03 per share) and $2 ($.00 per share) for quarters ended March 31, 2004, June 30,

2004, Septe;mber 30, 2004 and December 31, 2004, respectively.
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Note 10. Subsequent Event

On February 17, 2006, the Company entered into a First Amendment to Loan Agreement with Great Western Bank
which extends (a) the maturity date of the Loan Agreement dated January 13, 2005 between the parties from January 13,
2007 to January 13, 2008 and (b) the date on which the loan limit of the Loan Agreement is reduced from $22 million to $20
million from February 1, 2006 to February 13, 2007.

On January 13, 2006, the Company acquired a hotevl located in Clarinda, IA, under the franchise of Super 8. The
acquisition amount was $1.3 million, which was funded from our revolving credit facility with Great Western Bank.

51




(Usg-18S-)V) BIYSBIQIN ‘BUBWI)

emo] ‘A1) emoj
EMO] MO

(19ySNYUI0))) BYSRIGIN ‘U[OdULT]

(O, I59M4) BYSBIQIN] ‘UjODULT
eyseIqaN ‘eyewi()

BYSEIQIN TI1PN.O

BYSRIQON ‘Snquinjo))

BMO] ‘U0ISaI)

:g Jddug

gurfoIe)) YiroN
‘Use A\ JBD) OfJ1ANAR
BUI[OIRD) YUION “][IA91AR,]
puelAIejy ‘SUOWolos
BIUISITA “WUNON K00y
BIUISIA 1S9/ ‘U0)DULIY
RIUBA[ASUUD] “O[ISBD) MAN
BILIGIA 1S9 ‘UMOIUBTION
ewuBajAsuuad ‘Fmnqsinon
RIUTIA Of[1AlIIR
BWIZHA “unqng
BIUISIIA ‘UIT[YR(
eiuidnA ‘rodadiny
BIUBA[ASUUD{ ‘Fingsioquiey))
uisuodsip ‘uedhoqaysg
uISHOOSIAN ‘enboourjy

SUU] JI0JU0))

49
TrTo0L (1s¢Thl) Or1°6£7' Y £SH°€0T £v9'v81 — L6V HSO°1 £SH€0T amon
688806 (€12°9¢0°1) TISLILT 062°L2T Ly¥'LeY — $9¢°08T‘1 062°LTT MAAD
SOT 199 (L¥H'T89) LLY LITT SLI9TI $69vLS SLI'IL £8L°TH9 000°SS MID
ShE368°1 B9 LLET) 8S6°LLLT 166°L6Y 8EV'60L'T L18'1LT 0T$'890°1 vL1°9Z2 amo
96£°3¢1°1 (JzLpe1n) 19€°0L0°C 96.°20T €LE'SER £571°¢9 886°VET 1 €09°6¢1 gmMD
GGR796 (ST8vLE D) OP9CLIT PEOV91 9T0°TTI’l — 029°€S0°1 PEOP91 ANA
SOECO0T (€€6°918) £9L°869°T SLO'TTI 689°1€0°1 SLO9Y ¥L0°L99 000°SL. MAD
60S°L19 (298°60.L) 686°€TT’1 T8 C01 118769 999'1¢ SLI'1LS 9IL[S amMon
LEG'ESL Y (LT9LEC' D) LS6'SH6'T LO9'SP] LLE'SO1'T L0968 085°0t8 000°9S MIO
1€1°291 (L66°'T) 871991 — 8TI¥91 LLID
969'+09'% (8€9°1¢) 67 116°¢ 000°'szL 08L P1S016°E 000°6TL LD
3T9V6C'S (08L°969'1) S5 L89Y 066°€0€°T £91°669°1 — $ST'886°C 066°€0€°C MID
122+08°1 (651°9LS) 6£5981°C [¥8°C61 011'%vC — 6T¥T91°C (¥8°col MAD
TSS6°l (€STorL) 8€T°€0E'T L9S°L8E LEL'TS — TOS'VLL T L9S°L8E MYED
619°76%'¢ (Ls1ez1i‘n) 8TI6SSY 879°9¢ LY LSY — $STTO1Y 879°9¢ MID
6¥1°985°¢ (ooz'sze' ) LTOCIS Y TTE86E 9.£°659 — 169°€$8°¢ TTER6E MO
916‘STE’E (686°800°1) 10SvTE P — 0991 — €SH'8ST1Y — sns
60L°L90°C (95L°€8L) LYRL6S'T 819°¢ST 09L°SEY — L8OT9T'T 819°¢ST MaD
£79°086°C (811°'9%%°1) 0S8 YLy 6£7°TS1 TOLELS — 01L°00L'¢ 65778 aA
6T0°1€1°C (066'858) §05799°T PIGLTE SII'ELI — 06£°68+°C YIS LTE dA
165°191°C (80L°119) SE6'06S°T 92781 €878 — 89 Tr1°T $97°T81 MDD
8¥8°670°C (99€°05¢S) PIT16¥'C 00068 (43824l — T9E9PE’T 000°63 MID
878°¢9S°] (6v9°LEL) LOSH10°T 0L6°98C STL'LOT — T8L9IL ] 0.6'98¢ amo
8L8°88T°'T ¢ (SZI'I€9)Y  § 86P'SOLT  $ SOSPIT  § 601°L¥T — $ 68¢8SHT  $ SOSHIT amon
anqeA yoog uoprpAadag spuawdAoaduwy pue] sjudunsordwy pue] syuswdAoadwi [ pue] BueIq
PN pajeinunady ¥ s3uipyng ’p suppng » sduipling -wnouy

—G00T- 1€ I3GUIDINI(-IE - JUNOULY_SSO.IT) _ uonismboy 0) Juanbasgng sjso)) 180D [enuy
S00T ‘I€ J12quadd( Jo Sy

NOILLVIDHAdHd dALVINANDDY ANV ALVLSH TVHY ~ I A TAdIHDS

saleipisqng pue -ouy ‘Aeydsoy pradng

uolIEIO | puE POy




(39
LOT8E0°1 (866°1LS) €0THEE T 796°GLT OLT TP - ££6°168 796°6LT  dNd sesuey| ‘A1) Yied
796°105°1 (reL'eiL) TCLY66°] 1L6°9TT I71°L0Y - 18S°L8S‘T 1L6°97C MYD BYSRIGQON “Y[OJION
Y oril (0SL°6L9) SH6'89L° 1 LET1S CE0TLY - ZIE96T 1 LETIS dNd v10e(] YINOS ‘UMOUNE M
05£°889°1 (ree1£8) 991°976°| 816°€6S 168°L9] - SLT'SSL ] 8I1S°€6S  dMD (93po(1 159 M) BASBIQAN ‘BYRWQ
OTTL8LT (218°194) L61°€691 1€L°6ST 9¢6°EP] — [LT6¥S°] [€L°6ST dMD SBSUBY1Y ‘O[[lAanakeq
r0°T09 (66t°'60t) 850°0¢6 £3P°18 LB9°BIT - 1LETI8 €87°18 aMD sesueyIy Qqiasaneq
01208 (¥ 18¢€) LIS Y08 LTI'6L eroll - GE1°689 LTl'6L dNA BYSRIQaN ‘QuAepy
£EE°ERS ozr'ery) 7T56T6 1€T°L6 68I°11S L9V £CEBTY ¥9.°96 dNA sesuey] ‘opelo( {4
PPR°6L6 (TSy'o9L) 685°SLY 1 LOLP9T £0L°89C — 9889071 LOLP9T  dMD LINOSSIA ‘A1) UOSIdyaf
66LY09 (280°708) 809'v66 6L2TI1 ogr'eel — 8L1°198 6LT°CIT  dMD . ... ... . UNOSSIA ‘sule[d 1S9m
LYOYTR - (9L698S) 961°88C°1 LTV'ETT ~ " p66'89F T PoE'CE TOT6I8 ££0°06 MAD emO[ ‘OB Wilols
LT VIV (LzT'8TH) LY9°06L £€68°19 Lg09T] — 019499 £68°19 MYD BMOJ ‘2[[3d
805°€6E° 1 (100°0s1°1) 96£°630°C CTIvSr 0£5°99¢ - 998°7TL 1 CI'vsyr dmD sesuey ‘BXIUR]
9LE'L€9 (¥89°086) 0601501 0L6°9L1 £08°€91 - L8TLLS 0L6°0LT  dNA LNOSSIA ‘A1) WopSursy
PO DS 1 rigzeT ) SLT10V'T L8OS¢Y 96T 165 — 6L6°908°1 L8O'SEr  dNd SesuRy ‘BMYdIM
174 W28 (6LL'YYS) 159'%66 8T LOT LSS RS LOS‘IT $90°9¢¢S SYLG8 MAD emoj ‘Juesesid N
800°806 (1S€°L09) $62920°1 9068 ]TT1TT (6809%)  L90°608 €STGEl MID eMO] ‘uoutpD
860066 (LSS ILY) 600°019°1 99 16T yE£8°CSE (000°01)  SLI'PST'I 9r9°197  dNd sesuey ‘ueneyueiN
9GE QLS (TT6'T09) 8LT160°1 000°0¢T LY1°661 — [€1°2S8 000°0€1  MYD sesuey] ‘SI0gsnig
87STE9 (oL L) 62T HPE ] 00009 ¥66'89¢ - CETCLOI 000°09 dmM9O LINOSSIA] “A112QOIN
611°LLS (S9Z°¢v8) €01°¢8€°1 182°LEE 8ceiore 61561 §9L'CE1’l 29L°L1E  dNA sesuey| ‘SAeHq
LO1‘168 (L9¢P8L) 6V 067 1 6T0°681 019°TLS - 608°L16 CT0°S]T  dMD LINOSSTA “BI[BPIS
6¥0°€€9 (6TLSH9) SLLECT'T 000°St1 799°99¢ - 911°L98% 000°SP1L  MID emo] ‘uoiBuijing
LOSTLS (585°819) L98°6£0°1 ¢TSI 01¥°60¢ - LSP0ES STTIST  dmH LINOSSTA “OJIASYITY
anfep yoogd uonepdadagg syudwaroxduy pue-| sjuauRAcaduy pue| sjuauRAoIdury puey PueIq uonex| pue [PI0H
BN paemunIdy ¥ s3urpping 79 ssuipping » sduipping -umouy
S00T ‘1€ 19qUIdIA( b JUNoUrY SS0.11) uomsinboy 03 Juanbasqng s350) 1507) enug
S00T ‘1€ 19quII( JO SV
AINNIINOD - NOLLVIDHIdAd dALVINANDIDV ANV HLVILISH TVHY — I H'TAdAHDS
salteIpisqng pue -duj ‘Anjejdsoy [3119dng




14

£86°091°¢ (0£0°70) £10°€eS'T 000°059 A4S 0LS°00S°T 000°0S9 LLID BUBIPU] ‘MEBSIEA\

6L8VLO' 1] (SEP'LE) YIETIS T 000°00¢ - vIETIS T 000°00S H4D BuRIpU] ‘pusg Ynog

81Z°6SEC (€69°00) 116°Sv6°1 000°0¢Y 8¢S £8€°CT6°l 000°0¢Y LD PUBIPU] ‘UOLR]N

LSL96TY (150°L0) 808°CLY'E 000°058 - 808°CLYE 000°058 LD eUBIPU] ‘a)oAeye

EST'PLO'S (Tsy'sy) S09°618't 000°00Z°1 00091 S09°€08 v 000°002°1 LD BURIPUT ‘QUARA 1]

sTeeely (TLy'Leen ¥89°6€1°C CII°LEE (€05°6€) — LBI°6LI'S clLee MID dremel(] “19A0Q
$3)ING 110JW0))

LESTET'E (090°69L) $69°6LS°C €0TTTE S168ty - 6LL0STE £0C°TTE Ddd epLIO] ‘Uopurlg

6£7°9€0°¢ (€SE¥S8) 1L9°9€9°¢ 126°€ST 629°1S8 - P0T8LT 126'€5T MID eur[oIe)) YUON ‘Aqpoys

906°€¥9°'C Lervor'l) LESOVRE 905°19C 966°S1LY - 1vSoeh'e 905°19¢T MDD 998S2UU ], “UosyoRf

19T°GLLT (8¥L9V9) $60'60C°¢ v167T1T 965°8¢8 - 6617°0LET yI6TIT MID DISSIUUI ], ‘PUR[IAI[)
uuy uoydwey

0LLY99T (Tre'ves) cloers'e - 9€L'66S - 9LT 6¥6'T - MAD AYomuay ‘uejreq

$86°8¢S°1 (€€L°6TS) ¥80°600°C PES°6S €16°9L) - 1L1°7€8°1 P£9'6¢ SAS BiueA[Asuuag

‘BingsAnon

6¥8°129°C (8ST'LYS) 06E°CIEE L1L°SST L86' 1Y€ - OV 1L6T LIL'SST MAED Aomuay] ‘a[jiaueq
ssaxrdxy uuy Aeproyy

S96°079°E (z61°SH) LS1'98T'E 000°00¥ £8€°01 ELLSLT'E 000°00% dM BYSBIGON “ByRWIQ
uuy dagyg

968°66T 1 (P1LTED) LOTEE9 £9€°66 See68 — 7L EPS ] £9€°66 ANDA emo] ‘A saprey)

PIL010°1 (2T08°00¢) CECI9T’l 18667 LY8ot1 - 889°051°1 186°6Y vds eMO] ‘Bsoweuy

8LO6CIE] (TTL'6SY) 00L eYs 1 000T€T Y8y LT1 - 9191+ 1 000°T€T NON LINOSSIA] ‘OYSOaN

0LL0LET WS9'vTL) ¥06'€09°C 0TS 1Sy 86160 - 9P 86E£°T 0zs' 1Sy MUD UISUODSI Ay “QIUOWOUIA

8TS8IL T (089°9SL) LIO'ELET I$1°261 £CE°€6T (r€8°65) Y1L°61.0°T CL611T aMD UISUODSIA ‘Yo,

9LO'8SH' (999°$19) LOB'8ERY CE6 YT $89°981 - €T1TLYT CE6'PIT MID UISUOISTAY ‘OuBMByg

650°60¢°1 (€26'209) LLE'LLYT S09H¢T 86L'T6( - 6L 8T €09°PET gMD UISuodSIpg ‘03nuy

G8T665°1 (8S¥°LS9) 11L°€50°T 7€0°€0T 06£ V1T - 12€°6£8°1 T€0°€0T MIH UISUOISIA “aTe)iod

81L€LOI (0£0°SHY) 668°05¢°1 698°L91 S ANY — ¥81°S61°T 6¥8°191 aNd Sesuey] ‘SuosIE(

008°9¢L (S09°T6€) 0SSP0l CS8 Y01 CLY'EST — SLO'TLS S8 Ot aMD vMO] ‘UOSIPRIA 110

18Z°99¢°1 (069°LL9) 180°LES‘L 068v0T 166°0TT - 060°919°1 068v0T MDD vMO] QUNBOSNIA

anqep yoogq vonepaadag syuzwasoadury pue’] studwdAo.dwy puey syuawAoxduy puey AUeIq uoned0] pur PI0H
PN PABIMUINIDY 29 sSuppng 2 sSurpping 29 sSuiping RLULR g
G007 1€ 19U JEJUNOWY S50y uoysinboy 0 yuanbasqng sjso)y 1500 [enrug
S00T ‘I€ 12qudI( Jo Sy

THANLINOD - NOLLVIDHIJAd AALVINNNIDDY ANV ALVLSH TVHYA - [T A" I3dAHDS
saueIpIsgng pue -3uj ‘Apeydsoy Piadng



cs

Syueq 0318, SI[PM = M

Aypoy s1spey feqolD dnosSni) = LLID
uonensIuIwIpy ssauisng [[eWS = VgS
Jueg [EUONEN SUSZIND 1SIL] = N
jueq euueyonbsng = §N§
BYBW() JO YUBE [RUOUEN ISIL] = GN

soueuly asiyouel] [ende) g0 = g0

pRIoqQuIN2UAU() = NON
jueq 98elIA = gA

Juedq WISISoM Jealn) = gD
(T14) Yued suoilday = OFY

ueo] rende)) yoimuadin = M0

:S19pu2| SUIMO[[O} 2y} 0] JIJAI SIPOO IDUBIqUINIUF

990°0LL'6YT  § (PBE66E'CS) § TPL'GSO'E81 § 8OLEISTT €98'81E0E  § LSHTSS § 6L89¢e’eSl $ 1STI96°0T $ 18101,
00L°606 (rLy'evo’ ) 90v°988°1 S9L'89 6LL°69€ - LT9916°1 $9.°89 Juip[ing 2030
T6E°6£0°1 — T6£°6£0°1 — T6£°6£0°1 - - - ssaidorq
ur zononIsuc))
PLOVTIS L] (E16°6VES) Yr6'6CL 081 97844 A¥4 769°606'8T LSYTSS TST0T8°IST 98¥°T68°0¢ santadoiq
[910H [e101qng
PEOEs6l (r61°896) LE6OETT 165 V8€ 0IZ'691 - LTLL96'T 165 V8¢ MAD eINZIA
o . - QIAWLIR
] - - S uuj ske(q
LO9ETT'T (€TrpsY) LSY'LLTT €LE°06C 98T°GLI - 1L£°701°C £LE06T MDD BpUoly
Ritulitifi]
—_ — uuj s Aduoys
LOTLEST (187°010°1) PP 000°c S¥6'orS 6L690L - YOPE6TT St6‘9rS MAD BpLIO[q
‘uouaflgq
epewey
LY CEN'E (618°L56) 0L8°€S9°E STV 6EE opeSiy - 0£$°8ET'E STV 6EE MAD BpUO[]
‘031e7 Aoy
odae £9y] 1€ SN
anjep yoogq uonendtdag syupursodu] pue] spudwdAoxdug pue] syuduraroadury pue] aouelrq HONEDO] pUd [9I0H
PN PARMWNIDY 2 sdurping 3 sdurppng ¥ sdmplng -wmnouy

S00T ‘1€ JaquIadI( 1€ Junoury sso.s)

uonisiboy 03 Juanbasqng s1s0)

S00Z “T€ J9quiada( Jo sy

1500 [enuy

JANNIINOD - NOLLVIDHAdAd AJLVINANDIV ANV ALVLSE TVHA — I A" INAHAHDS
soLIeIpISqng pue duj ‘Aiendsoy Priadng



Supertel Hospitality, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO SCHEDULE III - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
| AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005

ASSET BASIS ’ Total

(a) Balance z;u DecemDBer 31, 2002 ..ottt ettt et areabes, $ 183,150,383
Additions“ to buildings and IMPIOVEIMETILS ......c.ociiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt s onee e, 4,642,142
Disposition of buildings and IMPrOVEINENS ........oeuiiiiirririiiere i eietesi e seceetre sttt et et reesbesaesreeresneeraens (16,934,007)
TINPAITITIETIE JOSS..outitetieterteite ettt ettt ettt ettt be s et ek e eb e e b e ek st st b st s be st be sk e s s e s an st easenaabbesreebesbaenestnans (2,069,000
Balance ft December 31, 2003 ... e et a et a e e e e saereeen. $ 168,789,518
Additions‘ to buildings and IMPTOVEIMENLS .......c..cecviiiriiriree et e ene 3,917,677
Disposition of buildings and IMPIrOVEMIENLS .......ceiuiruieieeiririitieetertete e sreete st e srestesee s staa e ssaeseeseesaesbeseeena. (8,816,590)
Impairme'nt JO8S ettt et et et et n bt an e s et ebaenee e, —
Balance at December 31, 2004 ..................oooiiiiii ettt e b e e, $ 163,890,605
Additions to buildings and IMPTrOVEINENLS ........c.evveviieceeeieeie e cie et eee et ereebeetresrnesteesressreensessesene e 42,083,569
Dispositi[on of buildings and IMPrOVEIMENTS .........cc.iciiiiireiieriere st ere e stesreesrentssrceva st saeeeseeesaerearsesressnens (804,724)
IINPAITIEIE LOSS vttt ettt ettt etttk e e btk se e ek e e e b et s e ab s e s et b se et b e ebeene et s e naseseanbenaen. —
Balanceat December 31, 2005 ..ottt ettt et et e oot e e e eserenaeena $ 205,169,450

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Total

(b)Balance|at December 31, 2002 ............c..ooi ittt ea e bttt st r et nae s, $ 47,471,171
Deprecie}tion for the period ended December 31, 2003.........cooiiieiiii i e 6,896,100
Depreciation on assets S01d OF AISPOSEA ......ccociiiiuieiirieiie et e ers v et et evb e esb e enesbe et resstvarsateans (5,772,325)
Balancef at December 31, 2003 ...t sttt te e ebe e te e sbesearae e $ 48,594,946
Deprematlon for the period ended December 31, 2004.........cooioiiiiiiiiiis et ene s 6,487,831
Deprec1at10n 0N aSSets SOId OF AISPOSEA ...ieiviiiciiieiie ittt st s ve et st easaectbeeerteeetbeeareesstbeenaeee e (5,737,195)
BalanceJ at December 31, 2004 ...............cociiiiiiriiiiee ettt er et baerae s rn e araeersenaenes $ 49,345,582
Depreciation for the period ended December 31, 2005.........oiiiiiiiviiiii ettt e, 6,850,711
Depreci(ation 0N a5Sets SOId OF AISPOSEA .....iiviiiiriiiiiiecie i sttt sr e ebe e s neeas (796,909)
Balance at December 31, 2005 ...........coooooviiieiireee ettt sttt ettt bttt e $ 55,399,384

(c) The z‘xggregate cost of land, buildings, furniture and equipment for the Company’s hotels for Federal income tax
purposes is approximately $204 million.

(d) Depr“eciation is computed based upon the following useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 20 - 40 years
Furniture and equipment 5-12 years

(e) The pompany has mortgages payable on the properties as noted. Additional mortgage information can be found in note
S5to ‘the consolidated financial statements.

Item 9. Cllanges in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Eval‘Juation was performed under the supervision of management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief financial Officer, as of December 31, 2005 of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15 of the rules promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that as of the
end of the penod covered by this report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures provide reasonable assurance that
such disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely providing them with material information relating to the

Company ‘(mcludmg its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in the Company’s periodic Securities and
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Exchange Commission filings. No changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting occurred during the
last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

The unaudited pro forma financial statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005 which gives effect to
our acquisitions in November 2005 of 6 hotels from Independent Property Operators of America, LLC as if it had occurred as
of January 1, 2005 is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.1.

PART I
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning the directors and executive officers of the Company is incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Proxy Staternent for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “2006 Proxy Statement”) under the captions
“Election of Directors,” "Executive Officers” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

The Board of Directors has determined that Patrick J. Jung is an “audit committee financial expert” as that term is
defined in the rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
and additionally, has determined that Mr. Jung is independent as that term is used in Item 7(d)(3)(iv) of Schedule 14A under
the Exchange Act. '

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer and has posted the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics on its Web site. The Company
intends to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 10 of Form 8-K relating to amendments to or waivers from any
provision of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer by posting that information on the Company’s Web site at www.supertelinc.com.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information regarding executive and director compensation is incorporated by reference to the 2006 Proxy
Statement under the captions “Executive Officer Compensation,” “Director Compensation” and “Compensation Committee
Report.” Information regarding the Company’s stock performance is incorporated by reference to the 2006 Proxy Statement
under the caption “Performance Graph.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information regarding the stock ownership of each person known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more
than 5% of the Common Stock, of each director and executive officer of Supertel Hospitality, Inc., and all directors and
executive officers as a group, is incorporated by reference to the 2006 Proxy Statement under the caption “Ownership of the
Company’s Common Stock By Management and Certain Beneficial Owners.” No securities of the Company are authorized
for issuance under equity compensation plans at December 31, 2005.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference to the 2006 Proxy
Statement under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

Item 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the material in the 2006 Proxy Statement under
the caption “Principal Accountant Fees and Services” and “Pre-approval Policies.”
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

|

(a)  Financial Statements and Schedules.

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting FiITil ......ccccooiiiiiiiiiiniiiiier e, 27
Consohdated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004.........cocooivvviiiniiocnviiriniiieccsecirericieecc e, 28
Consohdated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003...........ccoeeiene. 29
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 ....... 30
Consohdﬁated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 ........cccceueeeen. 31
Notes to Consolidated FInancial Statements........ccooireiirierierieieirienes it sre e e sae e s 32
Schedule I1I — Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation ........c.cecvveviinciininniin e 32
Notes to Schedule IITI-Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation........covivieeceericeimeireeiieirniecnrecrsieceeencsseeennee, 56

(b)  Exhibits.

3.1* Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended.

3.2 Bylaws “of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

10.1* Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Supertel Limited Partnership, as amended.

|

10.2 Form of Master Lease Agreement made as of January 1, 2002 by and between Supertel Limited Partnership, E&P
Financing Limited Partnership, Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership and TRS Leasing, Inc. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001).

|

10.3 Loan Agreement dated as of November 26, 2002 by and among Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership, TRS
Subsidiary, LLC and Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 26, 2002).

|

10.4 Promissory Note between Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership, TRS Subsidiary, LLC and Greenwich Capital
Financial Products, Inc. dated as of November 26, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated November 26, 2002).

10.5 Guarainty of Recourse Obligations made by the Company in favor of Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc., dated
as of November 26, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated

November }26, 2002).

10.6 Pledgé and Security Agreement by the Company, Supertel Limited Partnership, TRS Leasing, Inc. and Solomons GP,
LLC, for the benefit of Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc. dated as of November 26, 2002 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 26, 2002).

10.7 Master Lease Agreement dated as of November 26, 2002, between Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership and TRS
Submdxary‘, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated

November\ 26, 2002).

|
10.8 First Amended and Restated Master Lease Agreement dated as of November 26, 2002 between Supertel Limited
Partnership, E&P Financing Limited Partnership, TRS Leasing, Inc. and Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Current Report on Form §-K dated November 26, 2002).
|

10.9 Form} of Preferred Stock Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Company’s Amendment to
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (333-129376) filed on December 23, 2005).

10.10 Hoter:l Management Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2004 between TRS Leasing, Inc., TRS Subsidiary, LLC and
Royal Host Management, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2004).

10.11 Loan Agreement dated January 13, 2005 by and between the Company and Great Western Bank (incorporated by

reference “to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 13, 2005).
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10.12 Employment Agreement dated as of September 1, 2005 by and between the Company and Paul Schulte (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 25, 2005).

10.13 Employment Agreement dated as of September 1, 2005 by and between the Company and Don Heimes (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 25, 2005).

21.0* Subsidiaries.

23.1* Consent of KPMG LLP.

31.1* Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
31.2* Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.
32.1* Section 906 Certifications. ‘
99.1* Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Data

Pursuant to Item 601 (b)(4) of Regulation S-K, certain instruments with respect to the Company’s long-term debt are not filed
with this Form 10-K. The Company will furnish a copy of any such long-term debt agreement to the Securities and Exchange
Commission upon request. ‘

* Filed herewith
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! SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SUPERTEL HOSPITALITY, INC.

By:/s/ Paul J. Schulte

March 30, 2006 Paul J. Schulte
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated and on the date indicated above.

By:/s/ Paul J. Schulte By: /s/ Joseph Caggiano
Paut J. St;:hulte Joseph Caggiano
President and Chief Executive Officer Director

(principaﬁ executive officer)

By:/s/ Donayon A. Heimes By: /s/ Jeffrey M. Zwerdling
Donavm"‘n A. Heimes Jeffrey M. Zwerdling
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary (principal Director

financial and accounting officer)

By:/s/ Paul J. Schulte By: /s/ Allen L. Dayton
Paul J. $chulte Allen L. Dayton
Chairman of the Board Director

By:/s/ Steve H. Borgmann By: /s/ George R. Whittemore
Steve H‘ Borgmann George R. Whittemore
Director Director

By:/s/ Loren Steele By: /s/ Patrick J. Jung
Loren %teele Patrick J. Jung
Director Director

|
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EXHIBIT INDEX
3.1* Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended.

3.2 Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

10.1* Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Supertel Limited Partnership, as amended.

10.2 Form of Master Lease Agreement made as of January 1, 2002 by and between Supertel Limited Partnership, E&P
Financing Limited Partnership, Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership and TRS Leasing, Inc. (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001).

10.3 Loan Agreement dated as of November 26, 2002 by and among Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership, TRS
Subsidiary, LLC and Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 26, 2002).

10.4 Promissory Note between Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership, TRS Subsidiary, LLC and Greenwich Capital
Financial Products, Inc. dated as of November 26, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated November 26, 2002).

10.5 Guaranty of Recourse Obligations made by the Compény in favor of Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc., dated
as of November 26, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 26, 2002). 1

10.6 Pledge and Security Agreement by the Company, Supertel Limited Partnership, TRS Leasing, Inc. and Solomons GP,
LLC, for the benefit of Greenwich Capital Financial Products, Inc. dated as of November 26, 2002 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 26, 2002).

10.7 Master Lease Agreement dated as of November 26, 2002, between Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership and TRS
Subsidiary, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 26, 2002).

10.8 First Amended and Restated Master Lease Agreement dated as of November 26, 2002 between Supertel Limited
Partnership, E&P Financing Limited Partnership, TRS Leasing, Inc. and Solomons Beacon Inn Limited Partnership
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 26, 2002).

10.9 Form of Preferred Stock Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Company’s Amendment to
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (333-129376) filed on December 23, 2005).

10.10 Hotel Management Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2004 between TRS Leasing, Inc., TRS Subsidiary, LLC and
Royal Host Management, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2004).

10.11 Loan Agreement dated January 13, 2005 by and between the Company and Great Western Bank (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 13, 2005).

10.12 Employment Agreement dated as of September 1, 2005 by and between the Company and Paul Schulte (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 25, 2005).

10.13 Employment Agreement dated as of September 1, 2005 by and between the Company and Don Heimes (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 25, 2005).

21.0* Subsidiaries.

23.1* Consent of KPMG LLP.
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31.1* Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
31.2* Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

32.1* Section 906 Certifications.

99.1* Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Data

Pursuant to Ijtem 601 (b)(4) of Regulation S-K, certain instruments with respect to the Company’s long-term debt are not filed
with this Form 10-K. The Company will furnish a copy of any such long-term debt agreement to the Securities and Exchange

Commissiorﬁr upon request.

* Filed herewith

62




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Paul J. Schulte, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 of Supertel Hospitality, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or oniit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report, based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize, and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 30, 2006 . /s/ Paul J. Schulte

Paul J. Schulte
President and Chief Executive Officer

63
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Exhibit 31.2

|
|

1, Donavon A. Heimes, certify that:
1. I have|reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 of Supertel Hospitality, Inc.;

2. Based|on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not

mjsleéding with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based‘ on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present

in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The re{:gistrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
proce(dures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
/ accepted accounting principles;

f (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report, based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

| report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control

| over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over!financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or

perstms performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
| financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
f summarize, and report financial information; and

JJ (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

March 30,2006 /s/ Donavon A. Heimes

Donavon A. Heimes
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary
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